
Please ask for:
Lisa Young
Direct dial:
(023) 9254 5340
Fax:
(023) 9254 5587
E-mail:
lisa.young@gosport.gov.uk

5 March 2019

S U M M O N S

MEETING: Economic Development Board
DATE: 13 March 2019
TIME:: 6.00 pm
PLACE: Council Chamber
Democratic Services contact: Lisa Young

MICHAEL LAWTHER
BOROUGH SOLICITOR

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD

The Mayor (Councillor Mrs Furlong (ex-Officio) and Councillor Hook (ex-Officio))
Councillor Philpott (Chairman)
Councillor Beavis (Vice-Chair)

Councillor Ms Ballard
Councillor Bateman
Councillor Mrs Batty
Councillor Blackman
Councillor Carter
Councillor Mrs Cully
Councillor Mrs Huggins

Councillor Hutchison
Councillor Johnston
Councillor Miss Kelly
Councillor Pepper
Councillor Mrs Prickett
Councillor Raffaelli

Public Document Pack



FIRE PRECAUTIONS

(To be read by the Mayor if members of the public are present)

In the event of the fire alarm sounding, please leave the room immediately. Proceed 
downstairs by way of the main stairs or as directed by GBC staff, follow any of the emergency 
exit signs. People with disability or mobility issues please identify yourself to GBC staff who 
will assist in your evacuation of the building.

IMPORTANT NOTICE:

 If you are in a wheelchair or have difficulty in walking and require 
access to the Committee Room on the First Floor of the Town Hall 
for this meeting, assistance can be provided by Town Hall staff on 
request.

If you require any of the services detailed above please ring the Direct Line 
for the Democratic Services Officer listed on the Summons (first page).

NOTE:

i. Councillors are requested to note that, if any Councillor who is not a Member of the Board 
wishes to speak at the Board meeting, then the Borough Solicitor is required to receive 
not less than 24 hours prior notice in writing or electronically and such notice shall 
indicate the agenda item or items on which the member wishes to speak. 

ii. Please note that mobile phones should be switched off or switched to silent for the duration 
of the meeting.

iii. This meeting may be filmed or otherwise recorded. By attending this meeting, you are 
consenting to any broadcast of your image and being recorded. 



Economic Development Board
13 March 2019

AGENDA

RECOMMENDED 
MINUTE FORMAT

1.  APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

All Members are required to disclose at this point in the meeting or 
as soon as possible thereafter, any disclosable pecuniary interest or 
personal interest in any item(s) being considered at this meeting.  

3.  MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT BOARD HELD 30 JANUARY 2019 (Pages 1 - 4)

4.  DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

(NOTE: The Board is required to receive a deputation(s) on a matter 
which is before the meeting of the Board provided that notice of the 
intended deputation and its object shall have been received by the 
Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 11th March 2019.  The total 
time for deputations in favour and against a proposal shall not 
exceed 10 minutes).

5.  PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ITEM 3.5 

(NOTE: The Board is required to allow a total of 15 minutes for 
questions from Members of the public on matters within the terms of 
reference of the Board provided that notice of such Question(s) shall 
have been submitted to the Borough Solicitor by 12 noon on Monday 
11 March 2019).

6.  STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT Part II 

To approve the Statement of Community Involvement following a 
period of consultation on a draft Statement of Community 
Involvement.

Jayson Grygiel

7.  DRAFT LEE WEST AREA OF SPECIAL CHARACTER, 
SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENT 

Part II 

To present to Members a Draft Supplementary Planning Document 
(SPD) for Lee West Area of Special Character and to seek 
authorisation to carry out public consultation on this document.

Rob Harper



Economic Development Board
13 March 2019

8.  LIFT OF RESTRICTIVE COVENANT PLACED UPON LAND 
ADJACENT TO 104 LONG DRIVE, GOSPORT 

Part II 

Report to follow. Dean Pickett 

9.  ANY OTHER ITEMS 



Economic Development Board
30 January 2019

1

A MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BOARD
WAS HELD ON 30 JANUARY 2019

Councillor Mrs Furlong and Councillor Hook

Councillors Ms Ballard, Bateman, Mrs Batty, Beavis, Blackman, Carter, Mrs Cully, 
Mrs Huggins, Hutchison, Johnston, Miss Kelly, Pepper, Philpott, Mrs Prickett and Raffaelli

27. APOLOGIES FOR NON-ATTENDANCE 

There were none. 

28. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

Councillor Hook declared, on behalf of the Conservative Group Members present that they 
had a personal interest in agenda item 6 appendix a, 11 and agenda item 7 as Councillor 
Casey was director of the Historical Diving Museum. 

Councillor Miss Kelly advised that she has been in contact with the residents of Ferrol Road 
with regard to the land in detailed in agenda item 8

Councillor Raffaelli advised that he was the diving medical advisor to the diving museum. 

Councillor Carter advised that his Grandfather had been born in the diving museum.

 

29. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING OF THE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 
BOARD HELD 14 NOVEMBER 2018 

RESOLVED: That the edited minutes of the meeting of the Economic Development Board 
held on 14th November 2018 be signed as a true and correct record. 

30. DEPUTATIONS - STANDING ORDER 3.4 

There were none. 

31. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - STANDING ITEM 3.5 

There were none. 

32. GOSPORT HERITAGE ACTION ZONE 

Consideration was given to a report of the Conservation and Design Manager to provide 
information about the Gosport Heritage Action Zone and seek authority to enter into a 
Memorandum of Understanding with Historic England.

Members advised that they were delighted with the proposal and welcomed that it would 
preserve the important heritage of the Borough. The inclusion of Bastion number 1 and the 
Gosport Lines was welcomed and complimented the SPD. 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3



Economic Development Board
30 January 2019

2

Members recognised that Gosport was well known nationally for its heritage sites and had 
been ranked 7th nationally for its heritage assets, higher than cities such as Winchester, 
Oxford and Cambridge and also recognised that the report highlighted the importance of 
the heritage sites to the economic development of the Borough. 

Members recognised that it was important to keep and look after assets but also to 
recognise that some were not owned by the Borough and it was often difficult to gain 
access. It was reported that progress had been made with Heritage England with regard to 
access to Fort Brockhurst.

The Board recognised that the first Heritage Open Days had begun in Gosport and that 
they were one of the leading events in the country and would be expanding further in 2019. 
It was noted that there accommodation in the Borough had sold out for the last open days. 

Members suggested that it would be an option to explore additional unique selling points to 
the Borough would bring additional visitors. 

RESOLVED: That designation of the Heritage Action Zone status is noted and that authority 
is delegated to the Head of Planning and Regeneration, in consultation with the Borough 
Solicitor, to agree terms and conclude a Memorandum of Understanding to be entered into 
with Historic England.

33. LEASE OF NO.2 BATTERY TO THE HISTORICAL DIVING SOCIETY 

Consideration was given to a report of the Property Services Manager requesting that 
consideration be given to the terms of the lease proposed by the Council to the Historical 
Diving Society (The Society) to support their aims in repairing and improving the No 2 
Battery and their long-term objective to develop and sustain a museum of diving history.    

It was clarified to the Board that Historic England would only provide grant support for 
renovation and not maintenance.

Members recognised the importance of the facility and welcomed the work the society were 
undertaking to update the building. 

It was clarified that a rent review would be undertaken after 5 years and every five years 
following. 

The Board recognised that the diving museum was a first class facility, closely linked to the 
Institute of Naval Medicine and would bring the past and future of diving together. 

RESOLVED: That the Board approve the terms negotiated by Property Services and upon 
these terms authorise the Borough Solicitor to enter into such documentation as is 
necessary to effect the decision.  

34. RENEWAL OF LEASE-IN OF LAND AT FORTON LAKE FROM THE CROWN 
ESTATE 



Economic Development Board
30 January 2019

3

Consideration was given to a report of the Property Services Manager to consider the terms 
offered by The Crown Estate agents for a renewal of the lease-in of land at Forton Lake for 
the retention of grassed open space.

Members were advised that there was a bird hide located by the site and that the Council 
were currently liaising with the Council regarding it. 

Members recognised that the land helped to protect the properties from flooding and was 
very popular. 

In answer to a Member’s question, the Board was advised that investigations could be made into 
streamlining the process and numbers of pockets of land. 

RESOLVED: That the Board approve the terms negotiated by Property Services and upon 
these terms authorise the Borough Solicitor to enter into a new agreement with The Crown.  

35. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

The Chairman advised the Board that the skills and employment fayre was taking place at 
Gosport Leisure Centre on 31 January.

CHAIRMAN

Concluded at 6.49 pm



This page is intentionally left blank



5

Board/Committee: Economic Development Board
Date of Meeting: 13th March 2019
Title: Statement of Community Involvement 
Author: Planning Policy Manager
Status: For Decision

PURPOSE

To approve the Statement of Community Involvement following a 
period of consultation on a draft Statement of Community 
Involvement.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board:
 Approves the Statement of Community Involvement for 

Planning Policy and Development Management functions.

1 Background

1.1 Under the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 the Council 
is required to produce a Statement of Community Involvement (SCI).  
The SCI sets out how the Council as local planning authority will 
involve local residents, businesses and other interested parties in the 
relevant stages of the plan making process, consultation on other 
planning policy documents, and the development management 
process.

1.2 Due to a number of legislative and regulatory changes, it has been 
necessary to review the Council’s Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI).  The Economic Development Board approved a 
draft version of the SCI for consultation purposes on 14th November 
2018.  

1.3 This report provides a summary of responses to that consultation 
and where appropriate proposes amendments to the draft SCI.  A 
summary of the main issues and analysis of consultation and any 
proposed changes to the draft SCI are set out in Appendices 1 and 2 
respectively to this report.  

2 The Report

2.1 Consultation took place between 16th November 2018 and 11th 
January 2019.  This covered an eight week period rather than the 
normal six week period in order to take account of the Christmas 
period.  A total of 418 organisations and individuals were sent letters 
of notification about the consultation.  In addition to these letters, 

Agenda Item 6



6

copies of the draft document, consultation notices and comments 
forms were placed in the Gosport Discovery Centre and the other 
local libraries and both the Town Hall Main and Planning and 
Regeneration Services Reception areas.  The draft document and an 
on-line comments form were also available on-line at the Council’s 
website: www.gosport.gov.uk/sci

2.2 A total of 11 representations were received.  This level of 
representations was expected and it is of a similar level for previous 
versions of the document and comparable with those received by 
other local authorities on their SCIs reflecting the nature of the 
document.  An analysis of the responses to the consultation is 
contained in Appendix 1 to this report and a full set or redacted 
responses are available in the Members Room as well as on the 
Council’s website. This Appendix sets out the type of respondent – 
local resident or organisation and the details of the comments made.  
An officer comment has been added to address specific matters.  In 
some instances it is proposed to amend the SCI in response to the 
comments received.  These are also included in Appendix 1 so that 
any proposed amendments are clearly identified and are set out in 
the Schedule of Proposed Changes in Appendix 2.

2.3 The changes made to the SCI are minor and have been made to 
provide greater clarity within the document.

2.4 A revised SCI has been prepared taking into account the 
amendments as well as updating the introduction to reflect that the 
document has been the subject of public consultation.  This revised 
version is set out in Appendix 3. 

3 Risk Assessment

3.1 SCIs now have to be reviewed every 5 years under the provisions of
Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England)(Amendment) 
Regulations 2017. Failure to prepare an updated version of the SCI 
could leave the Council open to a legal challenge with regard to the 
preparation of the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2036. The SCI, as 
amended, will set out an up to date framework for consulting the 
local community on planning documents prepared by the Council 
and planning applications submitted to the Council.

Financial Services 
comments:

There are no financial implications arising from this 
report.

Legal Services 
comments:

Contained with report. 

Equality and Diversity The preparation of the SCI will ensure that all 
members of the Gosport community have an 
opportunity to be involved in the preparation of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan 2036, other related 
planning documents and the development 

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/sci


7

management process. An Equalities Impact 
Assessment has been prepared and relevant 
actions incorporated into the SCI.

Council Plan: The SCI will help to facilitate greater participation in 
the planning process in line with the core values of 
the Council Plan.

Risk Assessment: See Section 3
Background papers: Report to Economic Development Board 14th 

November 2018: Consultation Draft Statement of 
Community Involvement (Agenda Item 8)

Appendices Appendix 1: Summary and Analysis of Consultation 
Responses 

Appendix 2: Schedule of Proposed Changes 
(March 2019)

Appendix 3: Statement of Community Involvement 
(March 2019)

Report author/ Lead 
Officer:

Jayson Grygiel, Planning Policy Manager 



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

9

Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

1/1 Local 
resident

Object General
comment 

Although the public may be 
encouraged to comment in a 
wide variety of formats there 
is no indication as to what 
quantitative impact any 
comments might or might not 
have i.e. if 100% of the 
comments received on a 
proposal were negative 
would that have any impact 
on the plans or not?

Noted.

All the issues raised through the comments received 
during public consultation on particular planning 
documents or planning applications are given equal 
consideration by officers and are reported equally to the 
appropriate Council Board.  Therefore an issue raised by 
a single comment will carry the same weight as a petition 
or a large number of comments raising the same matter.  

The Council’s Boards are open to the public and in 
addition to the reports and recommendations placed 
before them, Councillors are mindful of local issues and 
concerns when making their decisions. 

With regard to planning documents the Council often 
makes numerous changes to reflect comments received. 
Any unresolved objections relating to the Local Plan are 
considered by an Inspector at the Examination-in-Public.

1/2 Local 
resident 

Object General
comment 

How does the public have 
any confidence that their 
opinions will ever be taken 

Noted.

All comments are reported to the relevant Council 

1 Private individuals are named as ‘local resident’ for the purposes of reporting comments



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

10

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

into account? Many people 
don’t bother to engage as 
their voice is never heard – 
have to wait for a formal 
planning application. But 
because the ‘master plan’ 
has been formerly adopted 
with the appearance of 
consultation any future 
objections will be 
meaningless.

Boards. Consequently Members are aware of the nature 
of any concerns and decisions are taken accordingly after 
consideration of objections, comments or support, 
planning policy and other material considerations. 

The Council considers public consultation is an important 
part of the planning process and spends a considerable 
amount of resources considering comments received to 
both the Council’s planning documents and planning 
applications.

1/3 Local 
resident 

Object General
comment

The style, format and content 
of the material makes it 
impossible for the general 
public to decipher and 
comprehend the real and 
potential impact of the 
content.  It should be the 
responsibility of the Borough 
Council to create simplified 
versions that clearly explain 
the content and ramifications 
if the proposals are adopted.   

Noted.

For key planning policy documents such as the Local 
Plan and Supplementary Planning Documents the 
Council have prepared summary leaflets or brochures 
distilling the detailed technical content into a more user-
friendly format.  In addition to this the Council have also 
produced exhibition displays and publicity material which 
have been specifically designed to provide information to 
as wide an audience as possible. 

The Council will also be investigating whether greater use 
of digital tools can assist with this process.

1/4 Local 
resident 

Object General
comment

The Council should 
commission truly 

Noted.



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

11

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

independent surveys to 
establish how widely the 
documents have been 
disseminated and understood 
by the public and publish the 
results.

This could prove a very costly use of public money.  It is a 
procedural requirement for local authorities to undertake 
public consultation on the preparation of local plans and 
supplementary planning documents and other planning 
documents including the Statement of Community 
Involvement and the Council’s Community Infrastructure 
Levy Charging Schedule.  

The Council is required to prepare a Statement of 
Consultation for its key planning policy documents 
including the Local Plan.  The Statement of Consultation 
forms part of the evidence base which supports the 
preparation of the Local Plan and is submitted to an 
independent Planning Inspector at the Examination-in-
Public (EIP).

The Statement of Consultation sets out all the measures 
taken as part of the consultation process and the 
outcome of this consultation. If an Inspector is not 
satisfied that sufficient consultation has been carried out 
s/he can choose not to proceed with the EIP until this has 
been resolved. 

2/1 Newtown C E 
Primary 
School 

Comment Section 6 Section 6: Community 
Infrastructure Levy.  The draft 
SCI does not indicate how 
organisations and community 

Noted. 

It is not considered that the SCI is the appropriate place 
to set out this type of detailed information.  However, the 



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

12

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

areas can bid for the Levy for 
local community sites.  It is 
our proposal that a 
transparent process of set of 
procedures are put in place 
and made public to allow 
local organisations and 
communities to bid for these 
funds and a set of criteria 
published as to what the 
Council would release the 
levy funds to and for.

Council is putting in place procedures and criteria in 
association with Gosport Voluntary Action so that 
communities are able to bid for CIL neighbourhood funds 
in connection with the Gosport Community Lottery 
process.  A report setting out the protocols for the 
spending process was presented to the Council’s 
Economic Development Board on 14th November 2018 
and is available to view at:  
https://democracy.gosport.gov.uk/documents/g52/Public
%20reports%20pack%2014th-Nov-
2018%2018.00%20Economic%20Development%20Boar
d.pdf?T=10

Detailed procedures of how this fund will operate will be 
presented to a forthcoming Economic Development 
Board.  This will include information on how organisations 
can bid for funds and the criteria used to assess bids. 

3/1 Highways 
England

Comment General
comment 

No specific comments on the 
consultation document.

General point relating to the 
Strategic Road Network 
(SRN) – The SRN is a critical 
national asset Highways 
England works to ensure that 
it operates effectively.  

Noted.
 
Highways England are a ‘specific consultation body’ and 
the Council will consult them on the proposals in the 
emerging Local Plan Review.

https://democracy.gosport.gov.uk/documents/g52/Public%20reports%20pack%2014th-Nov-2018%2018.00%20Economic%20Development%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.gosport.gov.uk/documents/g52/Public%20reports%20pack%2014th-Nov-2018%2018.00%20Economic%20Development%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.gosport.gov.uk/documents/g52/Public%20reports%20pack%2014th-Nov-2018%2018.00%20Economic%20Development%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://democracy.gosport.gov.uk/documents/g52/Public%20reports%20pack%2014th-Nov-2018%2018.00%20Economic%20Development%20Board.pdf?T=10


APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

13

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

Highways England would be 
concerned with proposals 
that have the potential impact 
on the safe and efficient 
operation of the SRN – in this 
case the M27.

4/1 Viewpoint 
Residents 
Association

Support General
comment 

The document is very 
comprehensive, well put 
together and easy to follow 
although there is too much 
jargon in places

Support welcomed.

It is the aim of the document to minimise as much as 
possible the use of planning jargon.  Technical terms 
have only been included where necessary to detail a 
particular stage or process in plan making or in relation to 
the decision making process for planning applications.  
The Glossary in the SCI aims to explain the terms which 
have been included. 

4/2 Viewpoint 
Residents 
Association 

Comment 3.18 (para.
6.1 in SCI)

Community Infrastructure 
Levy (CIL) – it would be 
useful to have an idea of how 
long a timetable to replace 
S106 with CIL would take.  
How will one know when it is 
to appear on the Council’s 
website?

The Council adopted its Community Infrastructure Levy 
Charging schedule on 1st February 2016.  The document 
is available to view on the Council’s website at: 
www.gosport.gov.uk/cil

A review of the CIL Charging Schedule will take place 
alongside the review of the Local Plan.  The revised CIL, 
like the revised Local Plan is subject to public 
consultation prior to be formerly submitted to the 
Secretary of State for formal examination.  The 
consultation arrangements are set out in the Council’s 

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/cil


APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

14

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

adopted SCI.

The Council prepares a Local Development Scheme 
(LDS).  This document sets out a work programme for 
preparing planning policy documents and includes 
approximate dates for the different stages of public 
consultation.  The LDS is approved by the appropriate 
Council Board and published on the Council’s website.  
The LDS is periodically reviewed and can be seen at: 
www.gosport.gov.uk/ldf
The most recent LDS was approved in November 2018.  

4/3 Viewpoint 
Residents 
Association 

Comment Table 1 Table 1: the period of 6 
weeks for consultation on the 
draft Local Plan does not 
seem adequate to consider 
(the plan) and make 
representations

No change proposed to SCI.

The consultation period for the draft Local Plan is at least 
6 weeks under Regulation 18 of the Town and Country 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012. At the draft 
stage there is a little more flexibility in the length of time 
local authorities can undertake consultation as this is a 
relatively informal stage of the plan making process and 
there have been various occasions in the preparation of 
previous draft local plans where this period has been 
extended. 

As a local plan progresses through the more formal 
stages of consultation and making formal representations 
the Regulations (Regulation 19) are more prescriptive 

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/ldf


APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

15

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

about the length of consultation required.  Under 
Regulation 19 a period of 6 weeks for consultation is 
required.

4/4 Viewpoint 
Residents 
Association 

Comment 4.3 (para
7.5 in SCI) 

Suggests replacing text as 
follows:
The Council ‘wishes to’ 
encourage developers to 
undertake their own 
consultation arrangements 
with local communities etc. 
Replace text ‘wishes to’ with 
‘actively encourages’ – 
means you will promote the 
idea more forcefully 

Amend first sentence of paragraph 7.5 in the SCI as 
suggested by comments to read:

Paragraph 7.5:

The Council wishes to encourage developers to 
undertake their own consultation arrangements with local 
communities to explain their development proposals.

Replace with:

Paragraph 7.5:

The Council actively encourages developers to undertake 
their own consultation arrangements with local 
communities to explain their development proposals.

4/5 Viewpoint 
Residents 
Association

Object 4.8 (para
7.11 in SCI)

Neighbourhood Notification 
Letters within a 5 metre 
boundary – this seems a very 
small distance if you really 
are involving the community 
in local planning issues.  

No change to SCI.

The regulatory requirements for publicising planning 
applications are set out in The Town and Country 
Planning (Development Management Procedure) 
(England) Order 2015. The Order requires publicity by 



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

16

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

Accept site notices go up but 
many do not read these.  
Perhaps within 10 metres.

either a site notice or “by serving the notice on any 
adjoining owner or occupier” (Regulation 15, (5) (b)).  
Therefore the 5 metre boundary specified in the SCI 
exceeds what the Regulations require local authorities to 
do and is considered to be effective.

4/6 Viewpoint 
Residents 
Association

Comment Appendix 2 Please add Viewpoint 
Residents Association to 
any/future consultation on the 
Local Plan

Noted.

Details added to the Local Plan Consultation Database.

5/1 Natural 
England

Comment N/A We are supportive of the 
principle of meaningful and 
early engagement of the 
general community, 
community organisations and 
statutory bodies in local 
planning matters both in 
terms of shaping policy and 
participating in the process of 
determining planning 
applications.

Support welcomed. 

6/1 Environment 
Agency 

Comment N/A No comments to make on 
draft SCI.  Welcome 
opportunity to work with the 
Council on the development 
of Local Plan.

Noted. 

7/1 Historic Comment Appendix 1 Our official title is “Historic Amend Appendix 1 accordingly.



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

17

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

England Buildings and Monuments 
Commission for England” but 
we are known as “Historic 
England”.

8/1 Lee 
Residents 
Association

Comment 7.19 – 7.25 The Association recognises 
the relevant updating in line 
with the NPPF (2018), 
GDPR, and other relevant 
requirements. The new 
inclusion of paragraphs 7.19 
– 7.25 concerning Brownfield 
Land Register and 
Enforcement are fully 
supported. 

Support welcomed. 

8/2 Lee 
Residents 
Association

Comment 1.1 Second sentence: the word 
‘all’ would seem more 
appropriate than ‘both’

Amend first sentence in paragraph 1.1 replace the word 
‘both’ with the word ‘all’.  Revised sentence to read:

Paragraph 1.1 

The Borough Council’s Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI) sets out the consultation arrangements 
for both all planning policy documents prepared by the 
Council and planning applications received by the 
Council. 

8/3 Lee Comment 7.13 The collection of 10 No change to SCI



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

18

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

Residents 
Association

signatures to support a 
Regulatory Board Deputation 
seems somewhat onerous, 
while recognising that it has 
an important function in 
demonstrating community 
support it is suggested 5 
signatures could be regarded 
as sufficient.  This also more 
closely aligns with the 
requirement in other localities

The collection of 10 signatures to support a Deputation to 
Board is set out in the Council’s Constitution (Part 4 
Schedule 11 Standing Order 3.4.2) and was agreed by 
the Full Council. The Constitution is available to view at: 
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-
council/constitution/

This issue is beyond the scope of the SCI as it would 
require a change to the Council’s Constitution.

8/4 Lee 
Residents 
Association

Comment 7.7 Delegated Powers – the 
apparent absence of any 
documented process to ‘call 
in’ a decision where it has 
been advised it will be 
authorised under delegated 
powers.

No Change proposed to SCI.

The role of delegated powers relating to the 
determination of certain types of planning applications is 
set out in the Council’s Constitution under Part 3 – 
Schedule 10: Scheme of Delegation to Officers. 
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-
council/constitution/

Section 7 of Schedule 10: Delegations to the Head of 
Planning Services (see Appendix A of this document) 
sets out the types of planning matters that can be 
determined by officers without the need for them to be 
reported to Regulatory Board.  As can be seen from the 
extract taken from the Council’s Constitution there are 

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/constitution/
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/constitution/
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/constitution/
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/constitution/


APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

19

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

very specific matters which can be dealt with under 
delegated powers including householder applications and 
cover particular matters such as private garages, 
extensions and other ancillary structures, boundary walls 
and fences, submission of reserved matters, applications 
for temporary consents etc.

The Constitution is clear that delegated powers shall at all 
times be exercised fully in accordance with any statutory 
requirements applicable at the time, as well as any policy 
or decision of the Council or appropriate Board.  (See 
also paragraph 1.2 of the Scheme of Delegation) and 
furthermore, any Officer who has delegated powers may, 
before making any decisions under those powers, refer 
the matter to the relevant Board for determination.

Any changes to The Constitution would have to be 
approved by full Council.

8/5 Lee 
Residents 
Association

Comment 7.15 The term “Permitted 
Development” should be 
outlined in the document with 
the reference to the authority 
it enjoys. If added it should 
be included in the Glossary.

Propose change to SCI. 

Add new paragraph 7.16 to explain permitted 
development and amend the Glossary to include a 
definition for Permitted Development. 

New paragraph 7.16:



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

20

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

Under the provisions of The Town and Country Planning 
(General Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 
there are some forms of development that can proceed 
under Permitted Development rights and do not require 
planning permission.  However, there are some 
restrictions and exemptions to this and it is therefore 
advisable to contact the Council before commencing any 
works on a project.

Amend the Glossary to include a definition for Permitted 
Development:
Forms of development for which planning permission is 
automatically given provided that no restrictive condition 
is attached or that the development is exempt from the 
permitted development rights.

8/6 Lee 
Residents 
Association

Comment General
comment

The list of “organisations 
contacted” requires revision 

No changes considered necessary.

The Council consults a wide range of organisations in the 
preparation of its planning documents and consultations 
on individual planning applications this includes 
consultation with both statutory consultees and the local 
community (see paragraph 3.13 of the SCI).  The list of 
organisations contacted (as set out in Appendix 1) has 



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

21

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

been reviewed and updated as appropriate.  

In addition to those organisations listed in the SCI, the 
Council maintains a local database of all those 
organisations and individuals who have registered an 
interest in being consulted on the Council’s planning 
policy documents.  The database is kept under regular 
review to ensure it is as up to date as possible and any 
organisation or individual is welcome to be included on it 
throughout the stages of plan making. 

A Local Plan Consultation Database Consent Form is 
available on-line on the Statement of Community 
Involvement web page at: www.gosport.gov.uk/sci

8/7 Lee 
Residents 
Association

Comment 4.14 Call for sites:
The Association recognises 
the obvious identification of 
some of Daedalus Waterfront 
as brownfield and would not 
be averse to expanding the 
town and its character into 
the former military site within 
the provisions of the 
Conservation Area and 
following the characteristics 
being considered for the 

Noted. 

These points are of a site specific nature relating to 
individual sites, therefore it is appropriate to consider this 
further as part of the work on the emerging Local Plan 
and the forthcoming consultation on the Draft West Lee 
SPD rather than being addressed as part of the 
consultation on the draft SCI. 

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/sci


APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

22

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

proposed ‘West Lee SPD’.  In 
recognition that the housing 
quota has already been 
reached, surpassed if the 
seafront multi-occupancy 
residences are added; then 
any residential increase must 
include adequate provision 
for schools, health and other 
currently overwhelmed 
services.

8/8 Lee 
Residents 
Association

Comment General
comment

All of the Cliff Headland, 
former Daedalus Sports 
Ground, Alver Valley and the 
small open spaces within Lee 
would be ‘protected’ open 
space.  This is vital as many 
areas of the town fall short of 
the recommended margins 
for open space (NPPF 2018 
& GBC’s Design SPD pages 
27-42). This makes the small 
greens and open spaces in 
Skipper Way, the Cherque 
Farm Estate and within 
Daedalus developments most 

Noted. 

The Local Plan provides significant protection to open 
spaces in the Borough.  

The emerging Local Plan will also consider protection of 
important open spaces. 



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

23

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

critical.
9/1 The Friends 

of Gosport 
Museum 

Comment General 
comment

Appreciate the need to inform 
local interest groups of 
potential changes to planning 
policies.  The draft document 
appears comprehensive and 
will be a valuable resource.  
We look forward to reviewing 
future changes for example 
by the displays of maps etc. 
in the Discovery Centre and 
libraries

Noted.

10/1 Cycle 
Gosport 

Comment General 
comment

There is a lack of easily 
accessible advance 
consultation on major 
schemes for example:

 the proposed Bus Station 
redevelopment; and

 The Gosport Waterfront 
SPD.

Noted.

The Council’s SCI sets out a wide variety of options on 
how consultation can be carried out in a meaningful way 
depending upon the nature of the planning topic. For 
example this can include formats such as staffed 
exhibitions/drop-in sessions and one-to-one meetings 
with local groups.  

Importantly it is recognised that planning documents can 
be technical in parts and officers strive to minimise the 
use of unnecessary jargon and where it is necessary to 
include technical terms, these are explained fuller within 
the accompanying text and/or in a glossary to the 



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

24

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

document. 

The Council produces summary leaflets and brochures to 
communicate key proposals in a user friendly format. 

The consultation stages in the preparation of detailed 
planning policy documents such as the Local Plan and 
the associated SPDs provide opportunities to engage in 
the process before detailed planning applications are 
submitted (and these too are subject to consultation 
arrangements). Larger schemes are often subject to pre-
application consultation.  For example, The Bus Station 
will involve further pre-application consultation as set out 
in the Council’s Gosport Waterfront and Town Centre 
SPD. 

In the case of this SPD, the Council engaged in detailed 
and lengthy consultation.  The potential scale, type and 
prominent location of the SPD area meant that it was 
necessary for the SPD and its supporting documents to 
set out proposals in a detailed way. Summary brochures, 
leaflets and exhibitions were made available and there 
were significant levels of staff and Member availability to 
engage with local residents.

The Council provided exhibitions (a number of which 



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

25

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

were staffed), drop-in sessions, summary leaflets and 
press articles to assist the consultation process.

10/2 Cycle 
Gosport 

Comment General 
comment

Locally there is a perception 
and cynicism about local 
development being a ‘done 
deal’ by the time it is 
presented to the public – as 
was the recent HCC BRT 
phase 2 exhibition. 
It would be good to see more 
Planning for Real style 
interactive workshops.  If 
such approaches had been 
taken with major 
developments including the 
BRT and Brockhurst Gate 
then it is likely that final 
designs would take greater 
account of peoples’ natural 
design lines and better 
incorporate safe, quick and 
convenient walking and 
cycling routes.

Noted.

Local plans go through a number of stages of public 
consultation prior to their submission to the Secretary of 
State for examination.  Prior to these stages the Local 
Plan is presented to Councillors through the committee 
report process.  This process is also a public process with 
board reports being available on-line and members of the 
public (and the press) able to attend board meetings.

Large planning applications are often preceded by pre-
application consultations (as with the Brockhurst Gate 
applications) and once a formal planning application has 
been received by the Council there is further consultation 
on the submitted proposal.  

The use of Planning for Real as a method of consultation 
is set out in the SCI and the benefits of this method need 
to be balanced against the fact that they can be resource 
intensive and expensive to run.  It is considered a 
combination of approaches is likely to be more effective 
in reaching a wider audience.

With regard to the Hampshire County Council BRT Phase 



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

26

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

2 proposals, it is important to recognise that as a direct 
result of public consultation and engagement with local 
Councillors the proposals were significantly amended.  

10/3 Cycle 
Gosport 

Comment General
comment

Greater Manchester 
Combined Authority has 
undertaken area wide active 
planning with residents to 
help develop new ‘Bee lines’ 
active travel network.  
Through a joined-up 
community led approach they 
have succeeded in attracting 
significant funding to deliver 
this plan. PUSH/TfSH and 
the LEP could support a 
similar cross-boundary 
approach to encourage 
greater genuine community 
consultation.

Noted.

Local authorities are under a Duty to Co-operate with 
their neighbours and other strategic partners on a wide 
range of cross-boundary issues including transport 
infrastructure and programmes.  In South Hampshire 
there has been a long history of cross-boundary working 
through the Partnership for Urban South Hampshire 
(PUSH).  
Solent Transport (formerly Transport for South 
Hampshire) works strategically with businesses, key 
stakeholders and other agencies including the South 
Hampshire local authorities to deliver improved 
infrastructure networks and systems across South 
Hampshire working in partnership to unlock substantial 
funds including the Department of Transport’s 
Transforming Cities Fund.  Further information can be 
found on their website at: http://www.solent-

http://www.solent-transport.com/


APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

27

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

transport.com/

10/4 Cycle 
Gosport 

Comment General 
comment

It would be good to see Area 
Action Plans/Neighbourhood 
Plans and/or the Town Team 
reinstated to facilitate direct 
community engagement. 

Noted. 

11/1 Local 
resident 

Comment Paragraphs 
3.5-3.7

Has there been a genuine 
and formal ‘Consultation’ (in 
the spirit of the Legislation) 
between Gosport and 
Fareham regarding Newgate 
Lane development(s)?

The first stage of Local Plan consultation is known as 
Regulation 18 which is a more informal stage of 
consultation and is followed by a more formal stage 
known as Regulation 19 whereby all unresolved 
objections are considered by a Planning Inspector at an 
Examination-in-Public.  The Duty to Co-operate is one of 
the matters examined by an Inspector. Local Plans need 
to be prepared in accordance with legal and procedural 
requirements which includes the Duty to Co-operate. 

http://www.solent-transport.com/


APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

28

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

Consequently if the Plan does not meet these 
requirements it is not possible for it to proceed further. 
Plans are examined by an Inspector to assess whether 
they are sound.  One of the tests of soundness is to 
ensure a plan is ‘effective’ which includes that it is, 
‘deliverable over the plan period, and based on effective 
joint working on cross-boundary strategic matters that 
have been dealt with rather than deferred, as evidenced 
by the statement of common ground’.  Unsound plans 
cannot be adopted by a local planning authority.

With specific regard to the proposals at Newgate Lane, it 
is considered that Fareham Borough Council has not 
adequately met its responsibilities under the Duty to Co-
operate regarding the Newgate Lane allocation (HA2) in 
its Draft Local Plan (published Autumn 2017) and the 
Council responded to this draft proposal accordingly.   
However, Fareham Borough Council will be producing a 
new draft plan with another Regulation 18 consultation.  
This will provide an opportunity for further consultation 
and dialogue between the two local authorities.

11/2 Local 
resident 

Comment Paragraphs 
3.5 – 3.7

Why is Gosport bound by 
legislation to consult – not 
just with the residents of the 
Borough but with adjacent 
Boroughs but Fareham is 

The regulations require that each local authority, 
including Fareham Borough Council, do more than 
consult with neighbouring authorities to address cross-
boundary issues.  Whilst part of these responsibilities will 
be met at a sub-regional level with the work undertaken 



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

29

COMMENTS TABLE
Ref 
No.

Name of 
organisation
1

Object/
Support/
General 
Comment

Paragraph/
page 
numbers 
(where 
identified)

Summary of key points Comments/Actions

not? by the Partnership for Urban South Hampshire (PUSH), it 
is clear that there are additional matters which require 
bilateral agreement such as the issues that arise from the 
HA2 allocation. 

11/3 Local 
resident 

Comment Paragraphs 
3.5 – 3.7

If Borough to Borough 
dialogue is not actually 
required, why is Gosport 
wasting time and money 
giving such a topic 
consideration?

Dialogue is required and the Council is seeking to 
undertake its responsibilities in accordance with 
government regulations to provide a positive planning 
outcome for local residents and businesses in the context 
of Government planning policies.  It is therefore 
necessary for the Council to produce a Statement of 
Community Involvement otherwise the Local Plan would 
not be able to progress.  These matters will be examined 
by an Inspector as part of the Examination-in-Public 
process. 



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

30

Appendix A: Gosport Borough Council Constitution Part 3 – Schedule 10:  Scheme of Delegation to Officers and Statutory (Proper) 
Officer Appointments

Section 7: Delegations to the Head of Planning Services

7.1 Planning Matters 

7.1.1 The determination of planning applications relating to the following types of proposals, including applications made by or on 
behalf of the Council but excluding applications from Officers of the Council; Members of the Council; or any member of their 
family, provided that: 
(i) in the case of any application approved under these delegated powers the proposals comply with the Borough Local Plan, 

and 
(ii) where objections have been received, or where supporting representations have been received for an application that is 

proposed to be refused, no Member has given written notice (within 5 working days of being notified in writing of a proposal 
to determine an application under this paragraph) that such an application must be referred to the Regulatory Board for 
determination 

(a) Householder applications including:-
Private Garages, 
Extensions and other ancillary structures;

(b) Boundary walls, fences etc; 
(c) Vehicular accesses; 
(d) All applications for advertisement consent; 
(e) Submission of reserved matters; 
(f) Applications for temporary consents; 
(g) The erection of extensions to non-residential premises; 
(h) Changes of use or sub-division of existing premises including A1 to A2; A1 to residential; 
(i) Protected trees and trees in Conservation Areas; 
(j) Non Material, and Minor Material Changes to permissions, consents, approvals, approved plans and details; 
(k) The erection of extensions and alterations to Listed Buildings; 
(l) Variation of Conditions; 



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

31

(m) Applications for development classified as Minor including new shop fronts; alterations to existing shop fronts save that the limit 
for residential units shall be 6; 

(n) Extension of Time 

7.1.2 Responding to the following notifications and minor consultations from:- 
(a) Hampshire County Council; 
(b) Fareham Borough Council; 
(c) Portsmouth City Council. 

7.1.3 Determination of Lawful Development Certification applications (Sections 191 and 192 of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990 as amended) and Certificate of Lawfulness of Proposed Works applications under Section 26H of the Planning (Listed 
Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. 

7.1.4 Authority, in accordance with Article 4 of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
Order 2010 to request the submission of such further detail as he considers necessary to enable an application for outline 
planning permission to be determined.

7.1.5 Authority to respond to any notification or application made to the Council under the terms of any Development Management 
Procedure Order or General Permitted Development Order for the time being in force.

 
7.1.6 The approval of conditions (including, in consultation with the Borough Treasurer, for the assessment of any commuted sum 

payable) for the future maintenance by the Council of any land which is proposed to be dedicated or transferred to the Council 
for use for open space or public amenity purposes. 

7.1.7 Applications to discharge conditions. 

7.1.8 The functions and powers of the Council in relation to High Hedges under Part 8 of the Anti-Social Behaviour Act 2003 
(the Act) excluding the function of setting the level of fee and refunding fees in Sections 68 (1) (b) and (8), of the Act. 

7.1.9 On receipt of a Hedgerow Removal Notice, authority to determine whether the hedge is “important” in accordance with 
the Hedgerow Regulations 1997 except in respect of hedgerows owned by the Council. 



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

32

7.1.10 Authority to enter into agreements or obligations which arise from applications decided under delegated powers and 
power to discharge or modify such agreements or obligations in consultation with the Borough Solicitor. 

7.1.11 Without prejudice to the general authority contained in paragraph 3.2 of this Scheme of Delegation all the Council’s 
powers to take all enforcement action authorised under the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, the Planning 
Hazardous Substances Act 1990 and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990 and the Planning 
and Compensation Act 2004 including (but without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing) the issue, variation and 
withdrawal of enforcement notices and listed building enforcement notices, stop and temporary stop notices, planning 
contravention notices, breach of condition notices, completion notices, hazardous substances contravention notices, 
building preservation notices, urgent works notices and the carrying out of works in default and the recovery of expenses 
in connection therewith and in the case of legal proceedings subject to the requirements of paragraphs 4.1.10, 4.1.12 
and 4.1.13 

7.1.12 Authority to issue a notice under Section 215 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (proper maintenance of land). 

7.1.13 Authority to decide whether an Environmental Assessment or Environmental Statement is required for any planning 
application to be determined. 

7.1.14 Authority to deal with all future applications for screening and scoping opinions under the Town and Country Planning 
(Environmental Impact) (England and Wales) Regulations 1999. 

7.1.15 To decline to determine: 

(a) subsequent applications under Section 70A of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990; 
(b) overlapping applications under Section 70B of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990; 
(c) subsequent applications under Section 81A of the Listed Buildings Act 1990; and 
(d) overlapping applications under Section 81B of the Listed Buildings Act 1990. 

7.1.16 Authority in consultation with the Borough Solicitor where an appeal is pursued following a refusal of any application 
whether determined under delegated powers or by the Regulatory Board or against non-determination by the Local 
Planning Authority to enter into or accept planning obligations where these would overcome a reason for refusal and then 
to withdraw the reason for refusal. 



APPENDIX 1:  Statement of Community Involvement – consultation draft: Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses

33

7.1.17 Authority to determine applications under the Conservation of Habitats and Species Regulations 2010.

7.2 The erection of any notice or the taking of any other action to promote road safety. 

7.3 To seek planning permission, Conservation Area consent and Listed Building consent in accordance with the Town and Country 
Planning Act 1990 and the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, subject to: 

i the Head of Development Management being given 14 days to comment on the proposal prior to the submission of the formal 
application, and 

ii the Head of Development Management agreeing that the proposal is not in conflict with any planning policy of the 
Council

7.4 To publish the Annual Monitoring Report to the Local Development Framework. 

7.5 Local Land Charges 
7.51 To carry out all functions and responsibilities associated with the Local Land Charges Act 1975 including maintaining and 

operating the Register of Local Land Charges; and authority, so far as such charges are not prescribed, to agree the 
scale of charges for responding to Land Charges Searches and replying to Supplemental Enquiries. 

7.6 Transport and Traffic 
7.6.1 Power to authorise temporary road closures or prohibitions or restriction of traffic in accordance with any relevant 

statutory provisions including to grant permission for the closure of any highway for celebrations such as street parties 
provided the Police do not object and the Council are indemnified against any third party claims

7.6.2 Authority to make vary or rescind Traffic Regulation Orders.
7.6.3 Authority to approve road openings for private purposes. 
7.6.4 Authority to issue and refuse any permit, licence, approval or consent (including the power to impose conditions and to 

rescind any permit, licence etc. granted) under the Highways Act 1980.



T
his page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 2: Statement of Community Involvement: Schedule of Proposed Changes (March 2019) 

35

Statement of Community Involvement: Schedule of Proposed Changes 

Paragraph 
No.

Proposed change Reason/Comment 

1.1 Amend first sentence as follows:

Replace:
The Borough Council’s Statement of 
Community Involvement (SCI) sets 
out the consultation arrangements 
for both planning policy documents 
prepared by the Council and 
planning applications received by the 
Council.

With:
The Borough Council’s Statement of 
Community Involvement (SCI) sets 
out the consultation arrangements 
for all planning policy documents 
prepared by the Council and 
planning applications received by the 
Council.

Improves clarity.

6.4 Insert  sub title ‘Other Policy-related 
Documents’
 

Remove specific example of ‘Areas 
of Special Character’ 

To improve clarity as this 
paragraph does not relate to the 
Community infrastructure Levy.

Areas of Special Character are 
normally produced as 
Supplementary Planning 
Documents

7.5 Amend first sentence as follows:

Replace:
The Council wishes to encourage 
developers to undertake their own 
consultation arrangements with local 
communities to explain their 
development proposals.

With:
The Council actively encourages 
developers to undertake their own 
consultation arrangements with local 
communities to explain their 
development proposals.

Provides greater clarity to 
developers regarding the 
importance of undertaking 
consultation on applications.

7.15 Add new paragraph 7.16 to read:

Under the provisions of The Town 
and Country Planning (General 
Permitted Development) (England) 
Order 2015 there are some forms of 
development that can proceed under 

Improve clarity.



APPENDIX 2: Statement of Community Involvement: Schedule of Proposed Changes (March 2019) 

36

Permitted Development rights and 
do not require planning permission.  
However, there are some restrictions 
and exemptions to this and it is 
therefore advisable to contact the 
Council before commencing any 
works on a project

Amend Glossary to include definition 
for Permitted Development to read:

Forms of development for which 
planning permission is automatically 
given provided that no restrictive 
condition is attached or that the 
development is exempt from the 
permitted development rights. 

Appendix 1 Add Historic England’s full title:

Historic Buildings and Monuments 
Commission for England (Historic 
England)

Correct title.

In addition to the changes shown in the table above, a number of other changes have been 
made to the Statement of Community Involvement (March 2019) which has not been set out 
in this Appendix and cover the following matters:

 Minor typographical changes;
 Paragraph numbers and cross-references to paragraphs; 
 Footnote numbering; and
 Text to reflect that this is the adopted version rather than the consultation version.







Gosport Borough Council 

STATEMENT OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 

This revised Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) has been 
prepared following public consultation in November 2018.  The SCI was 
adopted by the Borough Council’s Economic Development Board on 13th 
March 2019.

March 2019 

Gosport Borough Council is committed to equal opportunities for all. If you 
need this document in large print, on tape, CD, in Braille or in another 
language please ask. 



Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                              March 2019                                       

CONTENTS   

Page

1 INTRODUCTION 1

2 PRINCIPLES OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT 2

3 CONSULTATION CONSIDERATIONS FOR PLANNING POLICY 
DOCUMENTS

3 

        What are the Council’s legal responsibilities? 3
Who will be consulted? 4
How will the community be involved? 5
What documents will the community be consulted on? 7

4      DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENTS

5      SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENTS

6      OTHER PLANNING POLICY DOCUMENTS

8

15

17

7 INVOLVEMENT IN THE PLANNING APPLICATION PROCESS 20

Pre-Applications 20
Planning Performance Agreement 20
Planning Applications 21
Brownfield Land Register- Permission in Principle 21
How comments are considered
What happens after a planning application is determined?   
Appeals  
Enforcement                              

23
23
23
24

8 MONITOR AND REVIEW 25

Appendix 1: Consultees for Planning Policy Documents and planning 
applications

26

Appendix 2: Methods of Consultation on Planning Policy Documents 28

The Glossary 32



Statement of Community Involvement Review: Consultation Draft                                   November 2018                           



Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                         March 2019       

1

1.0 INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Borough Council’s Statement of Community Involvement (SCI) sets out the 
consultation arrangements for all planning policy documents prepared by the Council 
and planning applications received by the Council.

1.2 The Localism Act 2011 places closer working with local communities at the heart of 
the planning system in order to shape the places where they want to live, work and 
play. The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) published in July 2018 and 
updated in February 2019 provides the framework for local authorities and their local 
communities to prepare local and neighbourhood plans that reflect each area’s own 
needs and priorities through the local planning process.  

1.2 As part of this process, there is now a requirement for local planning authorities to 
review their SCI’s every five years in accordance with Regulation 10A of the Town 
and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.  

1.4 The local planning framework for the Borough is made up of a suite of documents 
that comprise the statutory development plan documents (DPDs), this also includes 
preparing a SCI for the plan area.  In addition to the preparation of DPDs, non-
statutory local development documents can be prepared to support the development 
plan such as Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs).

1.5 This SCI sets out how the Council can involve the local community and other key 
stakeholders in the planning process. The SCI covers a number of key issues 
including:

 The principles and process of community involvement (Sections 2 - 3).
 Arrangements for consultation on planning policy documents (Sections 

4 - 6).
 Consultation and notification arrangements relating to planning 

applications (Section 7). 
 Management, resource and monitoring matters relating to consultation 

(Section 8).

1.6 Locally, Gosport Borough Council is responsible for preparing planning policies and 
proposals for the Borough.  These are currently contained in the adopted Gosport 
Borough Local Plan 2011-2029.  The Council is now preparing a revised Local Plan 
covering the plan period 2016-2036.  

1.7 The Council is also responsible for determining most planning applications1 within its 
area. Community involvement is essential to this process and has been further 
strengthened through the provisions in the Localism Act 2011. 

1 Hampshire County Council determines planning applications covering ‘County Matters’ and proposals for minerals and waste.



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

2

2.0 PRINCIPLES OF COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

2.1 One of the key aims of the planning system is to strengthen community involvement. 
Local planning authorities should improve opportunities to encourage public 
involvement in drafting planning documents and informing decisions on planning 
applications.

2.2 The Borough Council will through the  Statement of Community Involvement:

 Seek to offer a wide range of opportunities to stakeholders and the local 
community to participate in the preparation of local planning documents within the 
resources available; and  

 Comply with, and where practicable exceed, the minimum legal requirements for 
consultation and publicity for planning applications.

2.3 The key principles of how the Council will involve the local  community are set out 
below:

 Present information in a clear and effective way; 
 Value the opinions and expertise of stakeholders, groups and individual members 

of the community;
 Provide different opportunities for people to contribute their ideas and 

suggestions through the use of a variety of appropriate consultation techniques;
 Ensure fair and equal treatment for all and recognise the value of diversity; 
 Try to ensure that its consultation methods encourage the involvement of people 

that do not normally become involved in the planning process; 
 Involve the public at an early stage in the process;
 Ensure information is accessible and available in a variety of formats to 

encourage a wide readership and encourage views from all parts of the 
community;

 Analyse consultation responses and report them in a clear and understandable 
way; and

 Provide feedback about progress and outcomes.



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

3

3.0 CONSULTATION CONSIDERATIONS FOR PLANNING POLICY 
DOCUMENTS

What are the Council’s legal responsibilities? 

General Data Protection Regulations 2018
3.1 In May 2018 the General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR) came into force.  The 

GDPR is a new European Union wide requirement that works alongside the Data 
Protection Act 2018 and replaces the Data Protection Act 1998.  It places greater 
obligations on how organisations handle personal data. 

3.2 For planning policy documents, the Council have a Local Plan Consultation 
Database. Individuals or organisations can request to have their contact details 
added to or removed from the Local Plan Consultation Database at any time. The 
Council will also contact members on the database to make sure they still wish to be 
on the database and to ensure individual contact details are still correct. Further 
information can be found on the Council’s website2.

3.3 The Borough Council is committed to protecting personal data.  The Council has a 
Privacy Notice following the implementation of the GDPR which can be viewed on 
the Council’s website3. 

Duty to Co-operate and Statement of Common Ground
3.4 The Localism Act 2011 sets out the statutory framework regarding the duty to co-

operate.  The duty to co-operate covers a number of public bodies and these are set 
out in the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.  
Further policy amplification of these requirements are contained in the NPPF 
(paragraphs 24 – 27).

3.5 Local authorities are under a Duty to Co-operate with each other and with other 
prescribed bodies on strategic matters such as housing, economic growth and 
transport and infrastructure provision which have cross-administrative boundary 
implications for development proposals and environmental conservation and 
enhancement. This needs to be undertaken constructively, actively and on an 
ongoing basis to maximise the effectiveness of Local Plan preparation in the context 
of strategic cross boundary matters.

3.6 In South Hampshire, there is a long history of cross-boundary working between local 
authorities and their strategic partners.  The Borough Council has been a founding 
member of the Partnership for Urban South Hampshire (PUSH) which was formed in 
2003.  PUSH includes twelve local authorities4  and closely collaborates with the 
Solent Local Enterprise Partnership, the Environment Agency, Natural England and 
Homes England.  

3.7 Work undertaken by PUSH has been a core element in demonstrating collaborative 
working on strategic cross boundary issues between the various local authorities 
within the sub-region.  The role of PUSH was a critical element cited in the Council’s 

2 https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/local-development-framework/database-
consent/
3 https://www.gosport.gov.uk/#
4 East Hampshire District Council (part); Eastleigh Borough Council; Fareham Borough Council; Gosport Borough Council; 
Hampshire County Council (part); Havant Borough Council; Isle of Wight Council; New Forest District Council (part); 
Portsmouth City Council; Southampton City Council; Test Valley Borough Council (part); Winchester City Council (part). 

https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/local-development-framework/database-consent/
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/local-development-framework/database-consent/
https://www.gosport.gov.uk/


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

4

Duty to Cooperate Statement (2014) produced for the Examination in Public for the 
current Local Plan 2011-2029.  This sets out how the Borough Council works with its 
neighbouring partners and other key organisations on common issues. The Duty to 
Co-operate Statement can be found on the Council’s webpage5. 

3.8 More recently in June 2016 the South Hampshire Spatial Position Statement (SPS) 
which sets out development targets for each Council to 2034. The SPS is based on 
significant cross-boundary evidence and will assist local authorities to meet the duty 
to cooperate on strategic and cross boundary matters.

3.9 The NPPF introduces the requirement to prepare a Statement of Common Ground 
which will document the cross-boundary matters being addressed and setting out 
progress made in co-operating to address these issues.  The Statement of Common 
Ground will be made publicly available to view as part of the plan-making process.

3.10 Statements of common ground are prepared and maintained on an on-going basis 
throughout the plan making process.  The advice in the National Planning Practice 
Guidance is that as a minimum these statements should be published when the area 
covered and the governance arrangements for the co-operation process have been 
identified and the substantive matters to be addressed have been determined. The 
Statement of Common Ground can then be used to identify any outstanding matters 
that will need to be addressed and the process for reaching agreements and where 
possible an indication of when such statements are likely to be updated.

3.11 The Statement of Common Ground should be published once the draft Local Plan 
has been published in order to show how collaborative working has been undertaken 
and be kept up to date.

Who will be consulted?

3.12 Current Government regulations require that the Borough Council consults particular 
organisations during the preparation of planning policy documents. Appendix 1 
provides further detail about the types of organisations we consult including the 
statutory consultees. 

3.13 During the plan-making process the Council will consult with a wide range of different 
people and organisations.  This includes:
 local residents
 local businesses
 community groups and voluntary organisations
 local societies and interest groups
 national charity groups 
 infrastructure providers
 statutory bodies and Government organisations (such as Historic England, 

Natural England) 
 neighbouring local authorities
 landowners
 developers

3.14 The Council maintains a database of organisations and individuals that have 
registered an interest in being consulted on the Local Plan and other Development 
Plan Documents. The database includes a number of local groups, businesses, 

5 www.gosport.gov.uk/localplan2029-evidencestudies (Document number: LP/A4/5).



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

5

developers and local interest groups. The database is reviewed during the different 
stages of plan preparation to ensure it is as up to date as possible.  The inclusion of 
additional contacts is welcomed at all stages of the process.

How will the local community be involved?

3.15 There are a number of potential consultation techniques that could be used for all or 
various parts of the Local Plan and other associated planning documents.  These are 
outlined in Appendix 2.

3.16 The preferred methods of consultation for each part of the preparation process will 
also depend on a number of factors including:

 Issues raised by a particular Development Plan Document (DPD) or 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD);

 Geographical coverage of the document;
 The stage of preparation; and
 Availability of resources (including financial constraints, staff and premises).

3.17 The Borough Council recognises the value and importance of public consultation 
throughout the planning process. In order to achieve this, the Council may need to 
provide additional support to certain groups or individuals who wish to participate 
(including methods set out in Appendix 2).  This involves the consideration of 
different venues, consultation times and alternative formats for documentation as 
described in paragraph 3.23 of this document.

3.18 Groups or individuals seeking assistance in accessing these documents can  contact 
the Planning Policy Section either by telephone on 02392 545461, or by email on 
planning.policy@gosport.gov.uk  or come to the Planning and Regeneration Services 
Reception (3rd floor) at the Town Hall in Gosport.

3.19 In addition the Council works in partnership with the voluntary and community sector 
through the Gosport Voluntary Association including the Gosport Community Voice 
Forum to improve understanding, coordination and cross-sector partnership working. 
This group will be used where appropriate to disseminate information to local 
community groups.

3.20 Consultation arrangements on the Local Plan or other planning policy documents will 
be approved by either the appropriate Board or Full Council6 at the same time the 
document itself is approved for consultation purposes.  

3.21 The Council will work with the Council’s Press Officer and other Council Sections as 
appropriate. 

3.22 The Council will have regard to Government guidance and best practice carried out 
by other local planning authorities. Wherever possible the Borough Council will use 
local expertise to develop and conduct its consultation exercises including the 
production of publicity material, exhibitions, PowerPoint presentations and maps. 
From time to time the Council may buy-in relevant expertise for certain aspects of the 
consultation process.  This could include workshop facilitators or trainers to enable 
staff to manage and conduct workshops or apply other techniques.

6 The pre-submission version of a DPD will need to be approved by Full Council.

mailto:planning.policy@gosport.gov.uk


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

6

3.23 The Council wishes to make its consultation processes as inclusive as possible and 
gather a diverse range of views.  It will achieve this by using a range of different 
consultation techniques and will also consider the following:

 Venues
o Physically accessible (to comply with the Equality Act 2010);
o Accessible by public transport; and
o Near to main populations.

 Consultation times
o Different times of the day; and
o Different days of the week.

 Format
o Braille, CD and tape versions upon request;
o Other languages upon request; 
o Large print version upon request; and
o Website.

3.24 The Council also has a good working relationship with the Gosport Access Group 
and Disability Forum who are able to provide advice on improving the accessibility of 
consultation processes and procedures for disabled persons.

What documents will the community be consulted on?

3.25 There are a number of different types of Planning Policy documents which can be 
consulted on including Development Plan Documents (DPDs) such as the Local 
Plan, Area Action Plans, and Neighbourhood Plans (where these are appropriate) 
and Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs). 

3.26 In addition to these, there are a number of other planning policy related documents 
such as the Community Infrastructure Levy Schedule, Local Development Orders 
and Conservation Area Appraisals.   A brief explanation of the purpose of these 
documents and the consultation arrangements are set out below.

3.27 Figure 1 aims to identify the range of documents that make up the proposed planning 
policy documents and identifies which of these are subject to public consultation.



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

7



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

8

4.0 DEVELOPMENT PLAN DOCUMENTS (DPDs)

Local Plan

4.1 The Local Plan sets out Gosport Borough Council’s planning strategy for the 
Borough. It is the key part of the statutory Development Plan7 for the Gosport area.  
Local Plans incorporate a number of elements including the following:
 Provides an overall vision for the Borough; 
 Sets out the Council’s core policies for land use and development planning 

during the plan period;
 Sets out the Council’s proposals and policies for the allocation of key land uses in 

the Borough such as employment, housing, retail and leisure uses;  
 Safeguards important land required for open space, community facilities and 

nature conservations;
 Includes policies to promote good design and safeguard the Borough’s rich 

heritage;
 Includes infrastructure requirements in connection with development proposals; 

and
 Includes detailed development management policies that will be used to assess 

planning applications and other development proposals.

4.2 The current Local Plan covers the period 2011-2029 (and was adopted in October 
2015). This plan is currently being revised and the emerging Gosport Borough Local 
Plan will cover the period 2016-2036.

 
Local Plan Process and key consultation stages 

4.3 The key stages of the preparation of the Local Plan are set out in the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended).  In 
summary these are set out in stages:

 Regulation 18: Public participation in the preparation of a Local Plan8

 Regulations 19 and 209: Publication of a Local Plan and making representations;
 Regulation 22: Submission of documents to the Secretary of State;
 Regulations 23-25: Examination process; and 
 Regulation 26: Adoption of Local Plan.

4.4 Those stages in plan preparation that are subject to public consultation are expected 
to exceed the minimum requirements.  The details for this are set out in the tables 
below:

 Publication of draft plan (Regulation 18) (see Table 1).
 Publication of Pre submission plan (Regulation 19) (see Table 2).

7 The Development Plan also includes the relevant Waste and Mineral Plans produced by Hampshire County Council, 
Southampton and Portsmouth City Councils, New Forest Park Authority, South Downs Park Authority.
8 Or other Development Plan Document such as an Area Action Plan.
9 Under Regulation 20 opportunity to make representations on the draft plan will be over a six week consultation period.



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

9

Table 1: Preparation of a draft Local Plan (Regulation 18)

Aim: To establish community views on draft planning policies that will guide the 
future development of the Borough and provide the opportunity for feedback to be 
incorporated in the next stage of the process.

Requirements: Regulation 18 in the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England) Regulations 2012 (or equivalent) sets out the requirements on who is 
consulted but does not set a formal time period for consultation.   Consequently 
the local planning authority has greater flexibility on how it can consult the public at 
this stage. 

Consultation period: At least 6 weeks consultation on draft local plan.  A number 
of stakeholders will be consulted informally in advance of the publication of the 
draft as part of the evidence gathering stage and/or as part of the Duty to 
Cooperate and the Statement of Common Ground obligations. 

Consultees: Those specific consultation bodies identified in the Town and 
Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (or equivalent).  
The list of these consultees and other relevant general consultation bodies as 
described in the 2012 Regulations are listed in Appendix 1 and the types of 
consultees included in paragraph 3.13 of the SCI.10

Minimum consultation requirements:
 Letters either by post or electronic communication to all statutory consultees 

and other interested parties who requested to be kept informed on the draft 
Local Plan.

 Documents with questionnaires made available at Council Offices, the Gosport 
Discovery Centre and the other three libraries. Other appropriate sites will be 
considered.

 Copy of the document and associated documents on: 
www.gosport.gov.uk/GBLP2036

Discretionary consultation measures that the Council may consider 
appropriate:
 Events: These can enable participants to explore issues and options in more 

depth.  These events may require active community participation at a local 
public venue.  Exercises could include ‘Planning for Real’ or ‘Enquiry by 
Design’.

 Workshops/Focus Groups/other ‘Active’ type sessions - depending on the 
nature and scope of document and the resources and time available.

 One to one meetings with local amenity groups and other organisations.
 Exhibitions at a network of venues including Council Offices and Libraries as 

well as other sites where appropriate.  Some exhibitions may be staffed at 
notified times.

 Articles in the Council’s ‘Coastline’ and on the Invest in Gosport website. 
 Summary Leaflets/Posters to raise awareness of consultation.
 Press release.
 Media briefing.
 Use of Council’s social media as a signpost to relevant consultation pages.11

10 The Council regularly updates the Local Plan Consultation database to reflect changes to the list of consultees as 
appropriate.
11 The Council will make use of social media where appropriate and will post information on Facebook, Twitter and other social 
media platforms to promote consultations.  Such posts will signpost users to the appropriate Council’s webpage.   At Regulation 

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/GBLP2036


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

10

4.5 After the public consultation period closes, the Borough Council will carefully 
consider all representations received and they will inform any amendments to the 
Local Plan.  The Council will publish a summary and consideration of representations 
received as well as full copies of the representations received.  Contact details will be 
redacted when published online although hard copies will retain address details.

Table 2: Publication of a Local Plan (Regulation 19)

Aim: To establish community views on the Pre submission version of the draft 
Local Plan prior to formal submission of proposals to the Secretary of State for 
examination.

Requirements: Under Regulation 19 as set out in the Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012.

Consultation period: There is a formal six week consultation period to make 
representations on the draft Local Plan. 

Consultees: Statutory consultees as set out in the Government Regulations 
(Reg.18 (1) and other relevant consultees on the Council’s Local Plan Consultation 
database (see Appendix 1) and the types of consultees included in paragraph 3.13 
of the SCI12.

Minimum  consultation requirements: 
 Formal letters either by post or electronic communication to statutory consultees 

together with a copy of the DPD.
 Documents with comments form made available at Council Offices as well as 

the Gosport Discovery Centre and the other three libraries and other sites used 
at the earlier draft stage for a particular DPD will also be used.            

 Copy of document with comments form at:   www.gosport.gov.uk/GBLP2036

Discretionary consultation measures that exceed the minimum statutory 
consultation requirements that the Council may consider appropriate (see 
Appendix 2):
 Letters to other relevant consultees. 
 Press release/Media briefing.
 Articles in the Council’s ‘Coastline’ and on the Invest in Gosport website. 
 One to one meetings with local amenity groups and other organisations.
 Exhibitions at a network of venues including Council Offices and Libraries as 

well as other sites where appropriate.  Some exhibitions may be staffed at 
notified times.

 Summary Leaflets/Posters to raise awareness of consultation.
 Use of the Council’s social media as a signpost to relevant consultation pages.13

18 stage only comments posted to the Council’s social media pages will be considered.  Those posted to external pages will 
not be taken into account.  During the formal consultation stages (Regulation 19), representations will not be able to be 
accepted via social media as these need to be duly made in order to submit to the Planning inspector to be examined. 
12 The Council regularly updates the Local Plan Consultation database to reflect changes to the list of consultees as 
appropriate.
13 The Council will make use of social media where appropriate and will post information on Facebook, Twitter and other social 
media platforms to promote consultations. During the formal consultation stages (Regulation 19), representations will not be 
able to be accepted via social media as these need to be duly made in order to submit to the Planning inspector to be 
examined.

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/GBLP2036


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

11

4.6 The Borough Council will prepare a summary of responses that will be submitted to 
the Secretary of State together with copies of the responses.  They will accompany 
the submission version of the local plan or other DPDs in accordance with Regulation 
22.

4.7 The Borough Council will send notification of where and how the submission 
documents are available for inspection and also notify those individuals and 
organisations who requested to be notified of the submission of the Local Plan to the 
Secretary of State.

4.8 The Local Plan or other DPD will be examined by an Independent Inspector who will 
examine the plan in order to ensure it has been prepared in accordance with a Duty 
to Cooperate, and has met all legal and procedural requirements and is ‘sound’.  A 
sound plan is defined as a plan that is:

 Positively prepared;
 Justified;
 Effective; and 
 Consistent with national policy.

4.9 The Council will publicise and where relevant notify the details of the Examination 
including the name of the Inspector, Programme Officer, the matters that are to be 
heard, programme for sessions, times and venues.

4.10 In accordance with Regulation 25, the Council will notify those persons who 
requested to be notified of the publication of the Inspector’s recommendations.

4.11 Following the adoption of the Local Plan14, the Council will in the locations listed in 
Tables 1 and 2 make available the following documents:

 The Local Plan;
 An adoption statement;
 Sustainability Appraisal Report.

4.12 It will also send a copy of the adoption statement to anyone who has been asked to 
be notified of the Plan’s adoption.

Other specific consultation undertaken as part of Local Plan preparation
4.13 As part of the Local Plan process there are some evidence-related work that requires 

specific consultation. 

4.14 Call for Sites: This provides an opportunity for the Council to invite those with an 
interest in the Borough to put forward sites for consideration for inclusion in the Local 
Plan.  A wide range of stakeholders are invited ranging from developers, 
infrastructure providers to local community and amenity groups. Potential allocation 
sites can be put forward for a variety of land uses and environmental enhancements 
as well as retention of land in its current use.  This provides the Council with an 
opportunity to consider all sites potentially available.  All sites that are put forward 
need to be considered through the sustainability appraisal process and does not 
mean automatic inclusion of a site in the Local Plan.  

14 Full Council adopts the Local Plan.



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

12

4.15 The ‘Call for Sites’ process also links to the Council’s Brownfield Land Register.15 
(See paragraphs 7.16-7.17 and the Glossary). 

4.16 Sustainability Appraisal: The Council is required to carry out a Sustainability 
Appraisal for each DPD it produces. This forms part of the Council’s Strategic 
Environment Assessment of its policies, plans and programmes as required by the 
European Directive.  The Sustainability Appraisal aims to identify the social, 
economic and environmental effects likely to arise from the different options, policies 
and proposals outlined in the various parts of the local planning policy preparation. 
The Sustainability Appraisal Report will include the Environmental Report of the 
Strategic Environmental Assessment as required by the Directive.

4.17 The Sustainability Appraisal Report will be available for public comment at the 
relevant stage of consultation for the DPD. Initially the Council will prepare a 
Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report and will consult relevant organisations 
prescribed by the Government. The Sustainability Appraisal Scoping Report sets out 
the Council’s framework for conducting Sustainability Appraisals.

4.18 Other evidence: Other evidence studies and documents will be subject to 
consultation at each main stage of consultation as outlined in Tables 1 and 2.

How will the Borough Council deal with comments received to the Local Plan?

4.19 Comments received from the public at each consultation stage are highly valued by 
the Borough Council.  

4.20 In the context of making comments or representations on statutory Local 
Development Documents such as the Local Plan, representations cannot be treated 
as confidential and are published on our website and made available for public 
inspection alongside the name of the person making the representation.  However 
other personal contact details will not be published for example email/postal address, 
telephone numbers or signatures.   Redacted hard copies of the representations will 
be made available for public viewing at the Town Hall by prior appointment.

4.21 In the case of representations to a Local Plan and other documents that are to be 
formally examined, respondents’ details and representations will be forwarded to the 
Inspector carrying out the examination of the Local Plan after the period for receiving 
representations is ended.  

4.22 All responses received by letter or electronic communication will be acknowledged.  
Anyone making comment on the early stages of the Local Plan (or other DPD) will be 
automatically consulted at the later stages unless the respondent no longer wishes to 
be involved in the process.  Comments made will be considered and these will inform 
the preparation of the next stage of the document.  

4.23 Copies of the representations placed on the Council’s website will be redacted so 
that personal contact details do not appear and redacted hard copies will also be 
made publicly available.  However, all representations in their original form will be 
sent to the Secretary of State along with the other relevant DPD documents at the 
time of submission.  A summary of all comments received and how the Council 
proposes to deal with the comments will be produced in a schedule and made 
available at the Borough Council’s offices for inspection prior to the relevant 
Board/Council meeting.

15 https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/planning/brownfield-register/



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

13

4.24 The Council will publish on its website a summary of how the representations have 
been considered by the Borough Council together with an explanation of the next 
stage of the process.

4.25 In relation to the Local Plan the Borough Council will produce a ‘Statement of 
Consultation’ outlining the following details at the Submission to the Secretary of 
State stage. The statement will include:

 A list of consultees; 
 How the consultees were consulted;
 A summary of the main issues raised by consultation; and
 How those main issues have been addressed in the DPD.

4.26 These reports will be made available on the Council’s Main Reception and at the 
Planning and Regeneration Services Reception, Town Hall; and at the following 
Public Libraries during normal opening hours:

 Gosport Discovery Centre, High Street, Gosport, PO12 1BT;
 Elson Library, 136 Chantry Road, Gosport, PO12 4NG;
 Lee-on-the-Solent Library, High Street, Lee-on-the-Solent, PO13 9BZ,
 Bridgemary Library, 74 Brewers Lane, Bridgemary, Gosport, PO13 0LA; and
 any other sites used at the preparation stages for the document in question.

4.27 The Borough Council will inform those that have outstanding representations of the 
details for the Independent Examination in accordance with the Government 
regulations (Reg. 24) and also advise them of the inspector’s recommendations 
(Reg. 25) and the eventual adoption of the Local Plan (Reg. 26).

Area Action Plans
4.28 Area Action Plans can be used where a more detailed framework is required for 

areas likely to experience significant change or where conservation is needed.  There 
are currently no Area Action Plans or other potential DPDs programmed in the 
Council’s Local Development Scheme (LDS). The considerations and process would 
follow those outlined above for Local Plans.

Neighbourhood Plans
4.29 There are currently no Neighbourhood Plans adopted or planned within the Borough.  

These arrangements are set out in case such a document is proposed.  

4.30 Neighbourhood planning was introduced by the Localism Act 2011 and the regulatory 
process for preparing them is set out in the Neighbourhood Planning (General) 
Regulations 2012 (as amended). 

4.31 These plans can be prepared by local communities through Parish or Town Councils, 
Neighbourhood Forums or a community organisation (these are known as the 
‘qualifying body’) with assistance on certain aspects from the Local Planning 
Authority.  Adopted Neighbourhood Plans can set planning policies to determine 
planning applications or grant planning permission through Neighbourhood 
Development Orders and Community Right to Build for specific development and sit 
alongside the Local Plan as part of the Development Plan.  However a 
Neighbourhood Plan must be in general conformity with the Local Plan and cannot 
promote less development than that set out in the Local Plan. A Neighbourhood Plan 



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

14

comes into force as part of the Development Plan for an area only once it has been 
approved at a referendum.

4.32 As part of the process of preparing Neighbourhood Plans, the qualifying body is 
responsible for carrying out a wide range of tasks including pre-submission 
consultation and publicity before submitting their proposals to the Council. Once 
submitted the Council will then publicise the Neighbourhood Plan’s proposals as 
required by The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended).  
The Council undertakes consultation on the final submission version of the 
Neighbourhood Plan and organises the referendum.  The Council will have prepared 
a number of evidence studies and other material in the preparation of DPDs and 
SPDs which may be of assistance in the preparation of Neighbourhood Plans.

4.33 The Government has published National Planning Practice Guidance on 
Neighbourhood planning setting out detailed guidance on the key stages and 
considerations required in preparing a Neighbourhood Plan and the roles and 
responsibilities of the local community (the ‘qualifying body’) and the Council.   The 
guidance can be viewed here: https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning-
-2#the-neighbourhood-planning-referendum. 

https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2#the-neighbourhood-planning-referendum
https://www.gov.uk/guidance/neighbourhood-planning--2#the-neighbourhood-planning-referendum


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

15

5 SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING DOCUMENTS

Supplementary Planning Documents

5.1 Supplementary Planning Documents (SPDs) are non-statutory documents providing 
further detail to expand on policies contained within the Local Plan. 

5.2 Recent examples include the Gosport Waterfront and Town Centre SPD (March 
2018) and the Design SPD (February 2014). Currently the Council is proposing a 
new SPD relating to the Area of Special Character proposed for the western part of 
Lee-on-the-Solent. Others will be produced from time to time as the need arises.

5.3 Community involvement will be important in preparing SPDs but they will not be 
subject to an independent examination by an Inspector. The only stage of 
consultation is public participation on a draft SPD (see Table 3). However for certain 
large sites it may be necessary to undertake a consultation event (such as Planning 
for Real) prior to the publication of a draft SPD and use the feedback received to 
inform the draft SPD.

Table 3: Public Participation on Draft SPD (Regulation 12)

Aim: To establish community views on the draft SPD to the local community in order 
to seek their comments, and where appropriate make amendments to the SPD prior 
to formal adoption by the Borough Council.

Requirements: These are set out in the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 (as amended) including the availability of the 
document. The Council’s proposals meet and exceed these minimum requirements.

Consultation period:  will be for no less than 4 weeks (Regulation 12).

Consultees: Statutory Consultees and other relevant interested 
organisations/groups and members of the local community that are interested in 
particular issues included in the SPD (see Appendix 1) and the types of consultees 
included in paragraph 3.13 of the SCI16.  

Minimum requirements: There are no minimum requirements specified under the 
current regulations, however as a minimum, the Council  will undertake the following: 

 Letters by post or by electronic communication to statutory consultees.
 Relevant documents to be made available at Council Offices as well as the 

Gosport Discovery Centre and the other three libraries.            
 Copy of document with comments form at: http://www.gosport.gov.uk/spd 

 
Further discretionary consultation that the Council may consider appropriate:
 Depending on the nature and scope of SPD other locations for viewing 

documents will be considered.
 In certain cases, such as a high profile development site, an exhibition may be 

held in the Council Offices or other appropriate venue(s).  Certain exhibitions will 
be staffed for specified periods.  

 Press release.                                   

16 The Council regularly updates the Local Plan Consultation database to reflect changes to the list of consultees as 
appropriate.

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/spd


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

16

 Consultation letter (posted or by electronic communication) and document to all 
interested parties.

 Summary Leaflets/Posters to raise awareness of consultation where appropriate
 Presentation to local interest/amenity groups may be appropriate for certain 

SPDs.
 For large sites it may be necessary to undertake a consultation event (such as 

Planning for Real) prior to the publication of a draft SPD and use feedback 
received to inform the draft SPD.

 Advertisement in local newspaper.
 Use of Council’s social media for highlighting consultation exercise.17 

5.4 The Council will consider all representations received and amend the draft SPD if 
necessary.  Then the Council will publish the final SPD together with an adoption 
statement.  The adoption statement will be sent to anyone who has asked to be 
notified of the adoption of the SPD.

5.5 The statement will set out those persons consulted when preparing the document, a 
summary of the main issues raised during consultation and how those issues were 
addressed in the SPD will also be prepared and made available alongside copies of 
the SPD. This is undertaken in accordance with Regulation 12.

17 The Council will make use of social media where appropriate and will post information on Facebook, Twitter and other social 
media platforms to promote consultations.  Such posts will signpost users to the appropriate Council’s webpage.  Only 
comments posted to the Council’s social media pages will be considered.  Those posted to external pages will not be taken into 
account. 



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

17

6 OTHER PLANNING POLICY DOCUMENTS

Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule

6.1 The Council has an adopted Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule 
which came into effect on 1st February 2016. It is intended that a review of the 
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) will be prepared alongside a new Local Plan. 
The review of the CIL Charging Schedule will be informed by evidence studies to 
understand the viability issues surrounding development. A timetable will be set for 
the preparation of a review of the CIL Charging Schedule and it will be published in 
the Local Development Scheme on the Council's website. 

6.2 The review of the CIL Charging Schedule will be prepared in accordance with the 
regulatory requirements set out in the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 
2010 (as amended). There are two stages of public consultation in the preparation of 
a CIL Charging Schedule: the first is once a Preliminary draft Charging Schedule has 
been published (Regulation 15) and the second is when the draft Charging Schedule 
has been published (Regulation 16). The draft Charging Schedule is prepared 
following the comments received at the preliminary stage. The draft Charging 
Schedule is subject to public consultation where formal representations can be made 
prior to the submission of the document, representations received and evidence 
studies to the Secretary of State for examination.  

6.3 Although the CIL document is not a DPD the charging schedule will be subject to 
independent examination, which could take place concurrently with the Local Plan 
examination. The consultation arrangements for preparing a CIL Charging Schedule 
are set out in Table 4 below.  

Table 4: Public Participation on Draft Charging Schedule (Regulations 15 and 16)

Aim: To establish views on the Preliminary draft Charging Schedule from the local 
community and consultation bodies as set out in Regulation 15 of the CIL 
Regulations. There is an opportunity to make formal representations on a Draft 
Charging Schedule prior to its formal submission to the Secretary of State for 
Examination. 
Requirements: These are set out in The Community Infrastructure Levy 
Regulations 2010 (as amended). The Council’s consultation arrangements meet and 
exceed these minimum requirements.

Consultation period: There will be a period of 6 weeks public consultation18 

Consultees: Consultation bodies and other relevant interested 
organisations/groups, businesses and members of the local community (see 
Appendix 1) and the types of consultees included in paragraph 3.13 of the SCI19.  

Minimum requirements: There are no minimum requirements specified under the 

18 The Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations 2010 (as amended) does not specify a particular length of time for public 
consultation at either the Regulation 15 or Regulation 16 stages.  Regulation 17 which sets out the requirements for making 
formal representations on the draft Charging Schedule states that representations must be made within the period specified by 
the charging authority i.e. the Borough Council in this case.

However, best practice cited in the National Planning Practice Guidance states the consultation period should be at least 4 
weeks and it is considered good practice to allow 6 weeks,  or longer if the issues for consideration are particularly complex.

19 The Council regularly updates the Local Plan Consultation database to reflect changes to the list of consultees as 
appropriate.



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

18

current regulations, however as a minimum, the Council  will undertake the following: 

 Letters by post or by electronic communication to the consultation bodies.
 Relevant documents to be made available at Council Offices as well as the 

Gosport Discovery Centre and the other three libraries.            
 Copy of document with comments form at: www.gosport.gov.uk/cil
 Advertisement in local newspaper (at approval stage only).

Further discretionary consultation that the Council may consider appropriate:

 Press release.                                   
 Consultation letter (posted or by electronic communication) and document to all 

other interested parties.
 Summary Leaflets/Posters to raise awareness of consultation where appropriate
 Presentation to local interest/amenity groups may be appropriate as part of the 

wider consultation on the draft Local Plan.
 Use of Council’s social media for highlighting consultation exercise.20 

Other Policy-related Documents

6.4 Any other planning policy-related documents will need to be in conformity with the 
adopted Local Plan. These documents will also involve partnership working and 
consultation with local residents, businesses and other organisations.  Examples of 
potential other LDDs could include sub regional planning work such as infrastructure 
and environmental studies for example coastal and flood management, Bird Aware 
Solent, transport plans at a strategic level and local planning policy protocols.

Local Development Orders

6.5 Local Development Orders (LDO) grant permission for the type of development 
specified in such an order and by doing so remove the need for planning application 
to be made by the developer.  Consultation is very important.

6.6 There are currently no LDOs in the Borough and at present there are currently no 
plans to prepare one.  However it is considered necessary to set out the 
arrangements in case such circumstances arise. It is at the discretion of the Council 
whether it wishes to make an LDO.  The Borough Council is required to consult 
persons whose interests they consider would be affected by the Order and those 
persons they would have been required to consult on an application for planning 
permission for development proposed by the LDO.

6.7 In carrying out the consultation, the Council will send a copy of the draft order and 
statement of reasons to consultees.  In addition the draft LDO statement of reasons 
and the environmental statement must be made available at the Council’s offices and 
other appropriate locations in the Borough such as the local libraries as well as on 
the Council’s website and advertised in the local paper.

6.8 The Council will display a site notice on or near site and serve a site notice on 
everyone the Council knows to be the owner or tenant of the site.

20 The Council will make use of social media where appropriate and will post information on Facebook, Twitter and other social 
media platforms to promote consultations.  Such posts will signpost users to the appropriate Council’s webpage.  Only 
comments posted to the Council’s social media pages will be considered.  Those posted to external pages will not be taken into 
account. 

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/cil


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

19

6.9 As part of the consultation process, the Council shall specify a consultation period, 
this must not be less than 28 days within which time representations must be 
received.

6.10 Once representations have been taken into account, the Council can consider if any 
modifications are needed or whether the draft LDO can be adopted.

6.11 Once all the consultation requirements have been met, the Council must send a draft 
of the LDO, any environmental statement relating to that Order, a statement of 
reasons and any modifications resulting from consultation to the Secretary of State.

Conservation Area Appraisals

6.12 Conservation Area Appraisals are prepared by the Local Planning Authority under 
the provisions of Part II of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) 
Act 1990.  The Borough currently has 17 Conservation Areas21.  From time to time 
the Council will prepare Conservation Area Appraisals.  These act as a guide to the 
buildings and features that contribute to the character of a particular area. Once a 
Conservation Area Appraisal has been adopted it is used to help inform 
consideration of planning applications. 

6.13 As with LDF related documents, there will be an opportunity for the public and other 
interested organisations to view and comment on the draft proposals and the 
comments received will be taken into consideration and reported to the relevant 
Council Board prior to them making a decision to adopt the Conservation Area 
Appraisal.

6.14 The Council will undertake public consultation in a number of ways including:

 Letters by post or by electronic communication to statutory consultees and 
local interest groups.

 The relevant documents will be made available at the Council Offices as well 
as the Discovery Centre and other local libraries.

 The relevant documents will be available to view on the Council’s website.
 Presentation to local interest and amenity groups to raise awareness of the 

draft proposals (See Reg 71 (2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and 
Conservation Areas) Act 1990).  

 Publicity will also include a notice in a local newspaper.
 Press release/media briefing.
 Article in Coastline where timing allows.

21 www.gosport.gov.uk/conservation-area-appraisals

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/conservation-area-appraisals


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

20

7 INVOLVEMENT IN THE PLANNING APPLICATION PROCESS

7.1 Public consultation is an important part of the development management process. 
The Council processes an average of 370 planning and related applications a year. 
This Statement of Community Involvement explains how the Council undertakes 
notification and consultation on planning applications with members of the public, 
interested organisations and statutory consultees. This ensures that anyone who is 
interested in a particular planning application has the opportunity to view and make 
comments on the proposals and these are fully considered before any planning 
decisions are made.  

7.2 The requirements for consultation and notification on planning applications is made in 
accordance with the relevant planning legislation and associated planning 
regulations, primarily this is contained within the Town and Country Planning 
(Development Management Procedure) (England) Order 2015 (as amended). The 
Council complies (as a minimum) with these Regulations and exceeds them where 
appropriate and practicable.

Pre-Applications 

7.3 The NPPF places significant emphasis on the role of pre-application engagement 
and early community engagement as part of the decision making process.

7.4 The Council encourages pre-application discussion on proposals before applications 
are formally submitted.  This allows key issues to be identified and advice given prior 
to a formal submission of an application.  This approach does not prejudice the full 
public consultation process or planning procedures as all planning applications are 
subject to publicity procedures and the representations received are an integral part 
of the determination process.  Pre-application advice does not influence how an 
application will eventually be determined. Further guidance on pre-application advice 
is available on the Council’s website22 . 

7.5 The Council actively encourages developers to undertake their own consultation 
arrangements with local communities to explain their development proposals.  Future 
updates to the Council’s website may include advice to developers emphasising the 
importance of the need for them to carry out and submit evidence demonstrating 
community consultation along with the planning application.

Planning Performance Agreements

7.6 The NPPF encourages the use of Planning Performance Agreements.  These are 
voluntary agreements between the Local Planning Authority and an applicant to 
agree matters of project management for particular planning applications that may be 
(but not exclusively) large scale or have complex issues.  A Planning Performance 
Agreement can be used to agree timescales, actions and resources for processing a 
particular application.  It can cover the pre-application and formal planning 
application stages but may also include the post determination stage as well.  They 
are useful tools as part of the pre-application process prior to any application being 
submitted.

22 www.gosport.gov.uk/pre-application-advice

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/pre-application-advice


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

21

The use of these agreements can be very helpful in setting out an efficient clear cut 
process for determining large or complex planning applications and encourage joint 
working between the Council, the applicant and other interested parties such as 
statutory consultees.

Planning Applications

7.7 Decisions on planning applications may be taken by the Regulatory Board or an 
officer of the Council in accordance with the scheme of delegation set out in the 
Council’s Constitution.  This can be viewed at the Council’s website at 
www.gosport.gov.uk\constitution.

7.8 The Council currently consults on planning and related applications in accordance 
with the requirements of the Town and Country Planning (Development Management 
Procedure) (England) Order 2015.  Bodies such as Natural England will be allowed a 
longer period of time to comment on applications where this is prescribed by 
legislation. Table 4 summarises the consultation techniques that the Council uses to 
consult on planning applications.

Table 4: Consultation Methods for Planning Applications

Method of Publicity 
Application Type Press Notice Site Notice Neighbourhood 

Notification 
Letter

Major: Y Y Y
Minor: N Y Y
Other:
Listed Building Consent Y Y Y
Works to TPO trees N Y Y
Advertisement Consent N Y N
Change of Use N Y Y
Householder applications N N Y
Special Cases:
All applications for development to 
Listed Buildings and/or on sites 
within Conservation Areas     

Y Y Y

Applications submitted with an 
Environmental Impact Assessment.

Y Y Y

Applications for development that 
constitutes a departure from 
development plan policies.

Y Y Y

Applications for planning permission 
for Telecommunication Equipment 
or for prior approval of siting and 
appearance of Telecommunications 
Equipment.

Y Y Y23

7.9 When the Council consults on planning and related applications it allows a period of 
21 days from the date of the publication of the consultation which may be by 
notification letter, press notice and/or site notice, for the public to respond in writing.  
After this publicity period expires the application can be determined. However, any 
representations received up to the date of determination will be taken into 

23 Head Teachers of schools with a boundary within 500 metres of the site will also be notified by letter.

http://www.gosport.gov.uk\constitution


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

22

consideration.  There are seven categories of application that are advertised both by 
press and site notices.

7.10 When used, site notices are displayed (usually on a lamp post or other street 
furniture) for 3 weeks on the site frontage or as close to the site frontage as possible.  
For sites that front more than one road, where possible, a site notice will be displayed 
on each frontage.  For sites where occupiers of adjacent properties will not pass the 
frontage of the application site when accessing their properties, site notices will be 
displayed in locations which as far as possible ensures occupiers accessing their 
properties will pass the notice.

7.11 For most applications, the Council will send a Neighbour Notification Letter to all 
properties with a boundary within 5 metres (excluding the width of any road or 
footpath) of the boundary of the application site.

7.12 The Council offers an on-line service where applications can be viewed on the 
Council’s website www.gosport.gov.uk/gbcplanning.  These are usually on the 
website within 2-3 days of validation.  The notification letter that is sent out always 
gives a 21 day consultation period.  Prospective consultees can view the applications 
on the website.  It is possible to make comments on-line before the end of the 
publicity expiry date.  The Council is able to take comments into consideration 
submitted by email or letter as long as the application has not been determined if it is 
delegated to officers and up until 5 p.m. on the day the application is considered by 
the Regulatory Board.   The Council publishes weekly lists on-line and these are also 
available in local libraries.  Hard copies of the applications are available to view at the 
Town Hall during normal office hours.  

7.13 Applicants and members of the public who have made representations will be 
advised if and when the application will be considered by Members of the Regulatory 
Board.  Agendas and reports are available 5 working days before the meeting in hard 
copy at the Town Hall and on the website.  Deputations can be made at meetings of 
the Council’s Regulatory Board.  Deputation requests must be made no later than 12 
noon two working days before the meeting.  A request to speak must be made in 
writing through the completion of a deputation form and must be supported by 10 
signatures of electors of the Borough or signed by or on behalf of the person or 
persons having a private interest in the object of the deputation, and addressed to 
the Borough Solicitor at the Town Hall, High Street, Gosport, PO12 1EB.  A 
deputation will be minuted and 20 copies of any relevant paperwork must be 
provided. These arrangements may be subject to change but the Council’s website 
will provide up to date guidance on how this process works. These guidelines can be 
viewed at www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/democratic-services.

7.14 The Council will consult the statutory consultees using any minimum thresholds for 
development they provide to the Council at both pre-application and application 
stages.

7.15 There are certain proposals that are not publicised such as those where there are 
interests of national security and applications for Certificates of Lawfulness for 
existing or proposed works.  Although works to trees in Conservation Areas must be 
notified to the Local Planning Authority they do not require planning permission and 
therefore are not publicised in line with the consultation methods outlined above.  
However if the Council is minded to make a Tree Preservation Order as a result of a 
Tree Notification local residents will be consulted.  

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/gbcplanning
http://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/democratic-services


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

23

7.16 Under the provisions of The Town and Country Planning (General Permitted 
Development) (England) Order 2015 there are some forms of development that can 
proceed under Permitted Development rights and do not require planning permission.  
However, there are some restrictions and exemptions to this and it is therefore 
advisable to contact the Council before commencing any works on a project.

Brownfield Land Register- Permission in Principle

7.17 Local Authorities are now required to publish a Register of previously developed sites 
(this is known as brownfield land) and to keep the Register under review.  Sites 
included on the list are included because they may be suitable for future 
development.  There are two parts to the Register:

Part 1 is a comprehensive list of suitable brownfield sites; and 
Part 2 is a list of only those sites granted ‘permission in principle’.  

7.18 Permission in Principle (PIP) is a new type of planning permission that will approve 
key planning principles such as land use, location and scale of development.  When 
a site has ‘permission in principle’ a developer will still need to obtain a Technical 
Details Consent before the development can proceed. An application for PIP will be 
publicised by the Council in accordance with the provisions of the Town and Country 
Planning (Permission in Principle) (Amendment) Order 2017.  

How comments are considered

7.19 Representations made by interested parties are acknowledged and considered and 
taken into account when an application is determined.  Comments made by the 
public, other interested groups and organisations can help to secure improvements to 
the original scheme or highlight particular issues.  However, only comments that are 
relevant to planning can be taken into account; the impact of a proposal on property 
prices, private disputes or matters dealt with under other legislation are not material 
considerations in the planning process. Issues that have been raised by interested 
parties are summarised and addressed in the final report on the application and 
anyone who has commented is advised of the eventual outcome in writing.  All 
written comments that are received by the Council will be available on the website 
and officers’ reports to Regulatory Board are also available on the Council’s website. 
The Council will take reasonable steps to remove personal (but not business) 
telephone numbers, email addresses and signatures.  The Council will not take into 
account, or display on the website, comments that include any inappropriate or 
offensive material.  Further information relating to commenting on planning 
applications is contained on Council’s website and can be viewed at: 
www.gosport.gov.uk/gbcplanning.   

What happens after a planning application is determined?

7.20 Once a decision is made it will be published on the Council’s website.

Appeals 

7.21 An applicant has the right to appeal to the Secretary of State if: a planning application 
is refused: or they do not consider a particular condition attached is reasonable: or a 
decision has not been made within the statutory period for determining applications 
and no alternative date has been agreed. The length of time an applicant has to 
make an appeal varies depending on the type of application made.  The Planning 

http://www.gosport.gov.uk/gbcplanning


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

24

Inspectorate has detailed advice relating to the planning appeals process and this 
information can be found at: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate

7.22 When a planning appeal is lodged the Council will send copies of any responses 
received to the Planning Inspectorate.  The Council will inform local residents and 
other interested parties when an appeal has been made -.

Enforcement

7.23 The NPPF recognises the important role enforcement plays in maintaining public 
confidence in the planning system. 

7.24 The Council intend to prepare and adopt a Local Enforcement Plan that will set out 
how breaches of planning control will be investigated and resolved. Potential 
breaches of planning control can be reported confidentially to the Planning 
Enforcement Team.

7.25 Planning applications that are submitted following investigations by the Planning 
Enforcement Team will be advertised in the same way as other applications.

7.26 Where formal enforcement action has been taken, details are held in an Enforcement 
Register that is available to view by appointment at the Town Hall during opening 
hours.
 

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/planning-inspectorate


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

25

8 MONITOR AND REVIEW 

8.1 As part of any public engagement exercise it will be important to assess any 
feedback received regarding the consultation process itself to determine what 
improvements can be made in the future.  In some instances it may be possible to 
make improvements during the consultation period.  As part of the assessment it will 
be important to consider any feedback received relating to any inequalities or barriers 
to participation identified by any stakeholder.

8.2 The SCI itself will be reviewed at least every 5 years alongside the Local Plan in 
accordance with the latest Government Regulations, new best practice or material 
changes in local circumstances



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

26

Appendix 1: Consultees for Planning Policy Documents and 
Planning Applications

Local Development Documents

Specific Consultation Bodies

The following bodies are known as specific consultation bodies (or consultation bodies in the 
case of a Neighbourhood Plan or Community Infrastructure Levy Charging Schedule) and 
who are consulted in accordance with and the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) 
(England) Regulations 2012 (as amended).  Please note, this list is not exhaustive and also 
relates to successor bodies where re-organisations occur.  

 Hampshire County Council
 Portsmouth City Council
 Fareham Borough Council
 Neighbourhood Forum (where appropriate)
 Hampshire Constabulary (not required for Neighbourhood Plans)
 Natural England or equivalent 
 The Environment Agency (or equivalent)
  Historic Buildings and Monuments Commission for England (Historic England)
 Network Rail Infrastructure Limited (company number 02904587)
 Highways England 
 The Marine Management Organisation 
 The Coal Authority24

 Any person to whom the electronic communications code applies by virtue of a direction 
given under Section 106 (3)(a) of the Communications Act 2003

 Any person who owns or controls electronic communications apparatus situated in any 
part of the area of the local planning authority 

 Any of the bodies from the following list exercising functions in any part of the local 
planning authority:

- Clinical Commissioning Group;
- Person to whom a licence has been granted under section 6(1)(b) or (c) of the 

Electricity Act 1989;
- Person to whom a licence has been granted under Section 7 (2) of the Gas Act 1986;
- Sewage Undertaker; 
- Water Undertaker; and 

 Homes England (or equivalent).
    
Other Consultees

There are a wide range of organisations that the Borough Council will consult. The Local 
Plan Consultation database of organisations and individuals for consultation is regularly 
updated and additional interested parties are welcome to be included at any time. Types of 
organisations include:

 Bodies which represent the interests of different racial, ethnic or national groups within 
the Gosport area;

 Bodies which represent the interests of different religious groups in the Borough;

24 The Coal Authority wrote on 16th April 2012 specifying that as Gosport’s administrative areas lies outside of currently defined 
coalfields it will not be necessary for the Borough Council to specifically consult the Coal Authority on emerging planning 
documents.



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

27

 Bodies which represent the interests of disabled persons in the Borough;
 Bodies which represent the interests of persons carrying out business including transport 

providers in the Borough; and
 Other types of groups including environmental, amenity, youth, charities, sports, tenants, 

residents associations, neighbourhood groups and other voluntary bodies.

Planning Applications 

Consultees25 
Ancient Monument Society Council for British Archaeology 
Historic Buildings and Monuments 
Commission for England (Historic 
England)

The Gardens Trust

Society for the Protection of Ancient 
Buildings

Twentieth Century Society 

Victorian Society The Gosport Society 
Georgian Group Gosport Borough Council – other 

services
Theatres Trust County Archaeologist
Hampshire Gardens Trust Crown Estate Office 
Marine Management Organisation DEFRA 
Queens Harbour Master Defence Estates / MOD
Natural England Environment Agency
Hampshire County Council - Lead Local 
Flood Authority

Hampshire Wildlife Trust

Portsmouth Water Southern Water
RSPB Forestry Commission
Hampshire County Council – other 
Departments

Building Control Partnership

Eastern Solent Coastal Partnership Fareham LPA 
Portsmouth LPA Department of Transport
Highways England Hampshire Fire and Rescue
Health and Safety Executive OFCOM NATS
Open Space Society Sport England
Scottish & Southern Energy Civil Aviation Authority
Design Council The General Aviation Awareness Council 

(GAAC) 
Aircraft Owners and Pilots Association 
(AOPA) 

National Planning Casework Unit

 25This is not an exhaustive list and it is not necessary to consult all these bodies for every application.  The list will be 
periodically reviewed.  Please contact Planning and Regeneration Services to obtain further information.



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

28

Appendix 2: Methods of Consultation on Planning Policy 
Documents

A summary of potential consultation techniques that could be used for all or various parts of 
the consultation process are outlined below.  

METHODS MAIN CONSIDERATIONS
Availability of paper 
versions of 
consultation 
documents

A copy of all documents will be available at the Council’s Office.  
This is a minimum requirement prescribed by the Regulations.  
Copies will also be placed in the Gosport Discovery Centre and 
the Borough’s three other libraries.  Other venues could be used 
for particular documents depending on the cooperation of the 
site manager. The geographical extent of a document or issues 
covered will have a bearing on what venues are approached.  

The Council operates a popular community loan scheme 
whereby local groups and residents can borrow consultation 
documents.  This improves availability to documents for those 
that do not have internet access or wish to consider the 
document over a period of time.

These services can be provided at little cost but need to be well 
publicised.  Attention will need to be given to how accessible the 
venues are in terms of location and the ease of being able to 
enter and move around the venue.

Availability of 
documents in 
electronic format

The Council’s website includes information relating to the 
Gosport Local Plan and other planning policy documents. This 
will be updated regularly and allow access to all the relevant 
documents as well as an opportunity to make representations.

This can deliver an extensive information base and interactive 
possibilities at relatively little cost.  Regular updating is 
necessary.  The audience is limited to those with internet 
access. Website needs to be user-friendly.

The Borough Council will also consider using website surveys 
for certain DPDs and SPDs where appropriate. 

Consultation by 
letter

The Council has established a mailing list for any organisation 
or individual who wishes to be consulted on all or part of the 
Gosport Borough Local Plan and/or other planning policy 
documents.   This list is GDPR compliant. A list of statutory 
organisations and a list of other types of organisations are 
shown in Appendix 1.

Consultation by e-
mail

Alternatively, organisations and individuals can be consulted by 
e-mail upon request.  

Use of Council’s 
community 
publications

The Council will use its own newsletter ‘Coastline’ which is 
delivered to most homes in the Borough 3-4 times a year 
(circulation just over 32,400). In addition to this the Council can 
also publicise the Local Plan and Supplementary Planning 
Documents through Business Connect which is a quarterly 
publication.  The Council will use these articles to inform 



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

29

residents about the Gosport Borough Local Plan and other 
planning policy documents, including their progress, how they 
can get involved and make representations. 

 
Use of the 
Council’s Housing 
Department 
consultation 
initiatives.  

The Council’s Housing Department already have some 
established methods of reaching Council tenants and other 
resident groups. These may represent an opportunity to consult 
with parts of the community that may not normally be engaged 
in long term spatial planning issues. 

Initiatives which could be used include:
 The Customer Opinion Panel which is attended by tenants 

and leaseholders who are interested in ‘Housing’ issues.
 Quarterly newsletter ‘At Your Service’ which is delivered to 

Council tenants and leaseholders.
 Neighbourhood Involvement database which is a network of 

tenants and leaseholders who wish to be consulted on local 
issues.

Use of local media 
(local press, TV 
and radio)

In addition to statutory requirements to advertise development 
plan documents, the Council will brief local media (press, tv and 
radio) in the form of a press release.  This can be an effective 
way of reaching a large proportion of the community.  

Leaflets The Council will produce short summary leaflets with certain 
consultation documents.  These leaflets will be available as hard 
and electronic versions and be available in large print.  These 
need to be well designed and user friendly.

Leaflets will be available at the Council Offices, local libraries 
and in some instances certain community venues, doctors’ 
surgeries and other appropriate sites. These will also be 
available on-line.

Hotline Telephone link to a Planning Policy team member to assist with 
Planning Policy consultation queries.

Public 
exhibitions/displays

The Council will set up public exhibitions for certain 
Development Plan Documents (DPDs) and Supplementary 
Planning Documents (SPDs).  The Council will assess which 
documents will require a public exhibition and whether these 
should be in a number of venues across the Borough or 
targeted at a specific site.  Sites include the Council Offices, the 
Gosport Discovery Centre and the three other libraries in the 
area and other sites as appropriate. Choices for sites will 
depend on availability and appropriateness, for example where 
a document focuses on a particularly area, it will be good 
practice to hold the exhibition in a site nearby.

Certain exhibitions may be staffed to provide further information 
and answer questions.  

This is a good method of bringing information and advice to 



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

30

local communities. Attendees are self-selecting and good 
publicity is required beforehand. Attention will need to be given 
to how accessible the venues are in terms of location and the 
ease of being able to enter and move around the venue.  
Displays will need to be well-designed.

Use of notices The Council will also raise awareness of the Gosport planning 
policy documents and consultation arrangements through the 
use of notices which will be placed in a network of community 
venues and/or appropriate public street furniture.

This can be an inexpensive way of informing the community 
although only limited information can be conveyed.

The Council will also consider raising awareness from limited 
targeted advertising for example a notice on the Gosport Ferry 
or on local buses.

Surveys/ 
questionnaires

The Council will from time to time conduct general surveys of 
public attitudes on issues facing the Borough.  

Where appropriate, research focussed on particular types of 
organisations/ individuals who may have an interest on a 
particular issue/topic will be undertaken often in relation to 
particular evidence studies. 

One to One 
informal meetings

The Council values the input of stakeholders and will arrange 
meetings where appropriate in order to inform planning policy 
documents as well as seeking to resolve any objections that are 
made.

The Council will consider having one-to-one meetings with 
organisations and individuals as part of a wider event (focus 
group/workshop/active planning session).

These are good for in-depth discussions but can be resource 
intensive.

Focus 
groups/Workshop 
Sessions

In order to inform certain documents, the Borough Council will 
consider setting up focus groups/workshops to discuss 
particular issues.   Focus groups could also be used to 
understand the views of a particular group within the 
community, including hard to reach groups.

They are a good way of presenting information in detail. They 
can generate constructive comments and can create ownership 
of a policy document. They can be resource intensive and 
involve significant preparation work.

Active planning 
sessions

Where the Council is producing a development plan document 
or supplementary planning document relating to a particular site, 
it will consider the merits of using particular active methods of 
consultation with local residents, businesses and community 



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

31

organisations.  Such methods could include Enquiry By Design 
and Planning For Real (see glossary).

They can be expensive and resource intensive and generate 
significant preparation work.  However they are a good way of 
presenting information in detail and generating ideas. 



 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

32

The Glossary

The Act (2004): The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004.

Authority Monitoring Report (AMR): (Formerly known as the Annual Monitoring 
Report) The AMR will assess the implementation of the Local Development Scheme and 
the extent to which policies in the Local Plan (and other planning policy documents) are 
being successfully implemented.

Area Action Plan: Used to provide a planning framework for areas of change and 
areas of conservation. Area Action Plans will have the status of Development Plan 
Documents.

Brownfield Land Register: Local authorities are required to keep a statutory Brownfield 
Land Register as part of the Government’s commitment to delivering 90% of suitable 
brownfield sites which have planning permission by 2020 to boost national housebuilding. 
The Register which can be found on the Council’s Planning web pages and is in two parts:

 Part 1 is a comprehensive list of brownfield sites across the Borough that are 
considered suitable at least in part for residential development, regardless of 
planning status; and

 Part 2 is a list of only those sites granted ‘Permission in Principle’.  This is a new type 
of planning permission that will approve the fundamental principles of development 
such as land-use, location, and scale.  When a site has ‘permission’ a developer will 
still need to obtain a Technical Details Consent before development can begin. 

Development Plan: As set out in Section 38(6) of the Act 2004. In Gosport’s case the 
development plan consists of the relevant Hampshire Minerals and Waste Plan (adopted 
2013) and the Gosport Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 (adopted 2015). 

Development Plan Documents: Types of documents that form the development plan 
which require formal examination.  This includes Local plans, Area Action Plan and 
Neighbourhood Plans.

Diversity: Encompasses acceptance and respect.  It means understanding that each 
individual is unique and recognising individual differences.  Part of valuing diversity is 
about creating environments that everyone can be included in and can thrive in.

Enquiry by Design:  This process challenges local stakeholders, planners and 
professionals to respond to the issues of a particular site through an intensive design 
process.  An example of this can be found at: https://princes-foundation.org/projects

General Data Protection Regulations (GDPR): the GDPR is a new European 
Union wide requirement that works alongside the Data Protection Act 2018.  It places 
greater obligations on how organisations handle personal data.  The Regulations came 
into force in May 2018.

Local Development Document: The collective term in the Act for Development Plan 
Documents, Supplementary Planning Documents and the Statement of Community 
Involvement.

https://princes-foundation.org/projects


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

33

Local Development Framework: The name for the portfolio of Local Development 
Documents. It consists of Development Plan Documents, Supplementary Planning 
Documents, a Statement of Community Involvement, the Local Development Scheme 
and Authority Monitoring Reports. Together, these documents will provide the framework 
for delivering the spatial planning strategy for a local authority area and may also include 
Local Development Orders. 

Local Development Order: Allows local planning authorities to introduce local 
permitted development rights.

Local Development Scheme: Sets out the programme for preparing Local 
Development Documents. 

Major Development: 10 or more dwellings or 0.5 hectares or over.  For commercial 
floorspace this is 1,000 m² or more.

Minor Development: 9 or less dwellings or land area under 0.5 hectares or up to 
999m².

Permitted Development: Forms of development for which planning permission is 
automatically given provided that no restrictive condition is attached or that the development 
is exempt from the permitted development rights.

Planning for Real: This uses consultation techniques which are designed to use 
simple models as a focus for people to put forward and prioritise ideas on how their area 
can be improved. 

Policies Map: The adopted Policies Map illustrates on a base map (reproduced from, 
or based upon a map base to a registered scale) allocations and designations contained 
in the local plan.

Regulations: Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 
(as amended), The Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended) 
and the Town and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure) (England) 
Order 2015.

Solent Local Enterprise Partnership: Led by businesses and supported by a number 
of university partners, the further education sector, three unitary authorities, eight district 
councils, one county council and the voluntary and community sector to act as a central 
driver for economic prosperity and job generation.  Further details about the Solent LEP can 
be found at: http://www.solentlep.org.uk/about 

Strategic Environmental Assessment: A generic term used to describe 
environmental assessment as applied to policies, plans and programmes. The European 
`SEA Directive' (2001/42/EC) requires a formal ‘environmental assessment of certain plans 
and programmes, including those in the field of planning and land use’.

Supplementary Planning Documents: Provide supplementary information in respect 
of the policies in the Local Plan (or other Development Plan Documents). They do not form 
part of the Development Plan and are not subject to independent examination.

Sustainability Appraisal: Tool for appraising policies to ensure they reflect sustainable 
development objectives (i.e. social, environmental and economic factors) and required in 

http://www.solentlep.org.uk/about


 Statement of Community Involvement 2019                                                                                        March 2019                      

34

the Act to be undertaken for all local development documents. This includes the 
requirements of the Strategic Environmental Assessment.



     



1

Board/Committee: Economic Development Board
Date of Meeting: 13th March  2019
Title: Draft Lee West Area of Special Character, Supplementary 

Planning Document
Author: Conservation and Design Manager
Status: For Decision

PURPOSE

To present to Members a Draft Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) 
for Lee West Area of Special Character and to seek authorisation to carry 
out public consultation on this document.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board approves the Draft Lee West Supplementary Planning 
Document (SPD) for public consultation.

1.0 Background

1.1

1.2

1.3

Officers were approached by Lee Residents Association to review the 
potential to consider designating the western part of Lee-on-the-Solent, 
located east Daedalus, north of Marine Parade and west of the High Street 
Conservation Areas, as an Area of Special Character. 

Areas of Special Character are areas of distinctive townscape and 
landscape character or quality, where clarity through an SPD can offer 
guidance as to how its character can be protected through the planning 
process. While these areas are not of sufficient architectural or historical 
interest to achieve Conservation Area status, they are recognised as areas 
that are suitable for additional and detailed character assessment to help 
guide future development.

Policy LP14 of the Gosport Borough Local Plan (2011-2029) indicates that 
the Borough Council will aim to identify additional Areas of Special 
Character where there is appropriate justification. Policy LP10 (2 c, d & e) 
also recognises the need to protect and enhance important townscape and 
landscape features within the Borough of Gosport.

Agenda Item 7



2

2.0

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Report

Following detailed analysis, with input from Lee Residents Association, it 
was clear that the Lee West area has a number of distinct characteristics. 
These include a consistent layout and building scale; a consistent alignment 
and set-back of many properties; boundary walls, hedges or fences; grass 
verges on many roads; notable individual and groups of tree (including 
street trees); a consistent building form (with limited exceptions), and a grid 
of streets focusing on Victoria Square with the Grade II Listed St Faiths 
Church as a notable landmark. 

The origin of the layout of the area dates to the late 19th Century, when the 
existing grid of streets was laid out between the few existing older roads and 
properties. The plots were defined across the area at the same date but only 
gradually developed over the next century. Whilst the distinct layout has 
been retained, it is not an area of sufficient architectural or historic interest to 
merit designation as a Conservation Area. Nevertheless, officers consider 
that its distinct characteristics are worthy of retention and protection through 
additional design advice as detailed in the Draft SPD.

The purpose of SPDs is to add additional design guidance to supplement 
Local Plan Policy and other relevant planning documents (in this case the 
Design SPD adopted in 2014). On adoption it would be used to assess 
proposals for the area and help guide an appropriate form of development. It 
is not intended as a means to prevent future development, rather to ensure 
that such development has regard to the design qualities relevant to specific 
parts of the area.

The Council has the ability to consider implementing what is known as an 
Article 4 Direction, through which selected permitted development rights can 
be removed in the interests of controlling potentially harmful development. 
This could be considered at a future date, through Regulatory Board, and 
responses to the proposed SPD will help in this regard. 

The Lee Residents Association has been closely involved with the drafting 
of the proposed SPD and has offered officers an opportunity to present the 
proposals at their forthcoming Annual General Meeting, at the beginning of 
what would be the proposed consultation period, were Members to approve 
the recommendation of this Report.

Subject to Board approval, the proposal is to consult for a period of six 
weeks from late March until May 2019. The consultation will include a brief 



3

2.7

2.8

2.9

questionnaire asking the following questions:

 Do you agree with the principles of the Lee West Area of Special 
Character SPD?

 Do you have any additional comments or suggestions with regard to 
the proposed SPD?

Wide public engagement will add significant weight to the proposed Area of 
Special Character SPD and will give members of the public, residents, and 
interested organisations an opportunity to provide additional information and 
input. The public consultation exercise will include two small exhibitions (one 
in Lee-on-the-Solent Library, and one in St Faiths Church Hall (subject to 
confirmation)), full details provided on the Council’s website, and carrying 
out extensive local consultation in the area with the support and assistance 
of Lee Residents Association. Communications support would be put in 
place for the consultation, including such tools as Coastline magazine, 
social media and a press release as and when appropriate.

Once a consultation period has ended a further report would be submitted to 
the Economic Development Board outlining the responses received and any 
proposed changes relating to this draft proposal. 

An Equalities Impact Assessment Screening Form has been completed (see 
Appendix 2).

3.0

3.1

4.0

4.1

Risk Assessment

Public consultation on a proposed Lee West Area of Special Character SPD 
would provide important evidence to support the implementation of the SPD 
through the planning process and help to refine the draft document 
presented to this Board. If adopted the Area of Special Character SPD 
would also provide more detailed clarity on the key characteristics of the 
area for landowners, residents, developers and other interested parties, in 
the interests of protecting or enhancing that special character.

Conclusion

The consultation with regard to the Draft Area of Special Character SPD will 
provide an opportunity for the community and other interested parties to 
comment on the proposed planning document.  Once adopted, it would be a 
material consideration when determining future planning applications and 
will provide a framework to help coordinate future action by the Council and 
its partners.



4

Financial Services 
comments:

None arising from this report.

Legal Services 
comments:

Contained within the report

Equality and Diversity Implementation of a wide range of engagement and 
consultation methods will help ensure equal opportunity for 
interested stakeholders to express their views. Accessible 
venues, a variety of consultation methods and the 
availability of alternative formats should encourage wide 
participation.

Service Improvement 
Plan implications:

The need to consider SPD documents is included in the 
SIP and supported by Local Plan policy.

Corporate Plan: An adopted SPD will help facilitate appropriate investment 
and development which will assist in delivering a number of 
the Council’s strategic priorities.  These include: preserving 
and enhancing the areas distinct character.

Risk Assessment: See Section 3.0
Background papers: None 
Appendices Appendix1: Draft Lee West Supplementary Planning 

Document.
Appendix 2: An Equalities Impact Assessment Screening 
Form.

Report author/ Lead 
Officer:

Rob Harper, Conservation and Design Manager



Gosport Borough Council

Lee West Area of Special
Character

Draft Supplementary Planning
Document
March 2019

Delivering
for Gosport


Places

27918 Lee West Front Cover copy.pdf   1   25/01/2019   10:56

Appendix 1





Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

1 
 

 

Local Development Framework 

 

Lee West Area of Special Character Supplementary Planning 

Document 
 

March 2019 

  



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

2 
 

  



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

3 
 

Contents 

 

Introduction ……………………………………………………………….......... 5 

Historic development of Lee West …………...………………………………. 7 

Policy position ………………………………………….……………….……… 13 

Key characteristics and design guidance …….………...…………………… 15 

Conclusion ………………………………………………...…………………… 34 

 

  



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

4 
 

  



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

5 
 

Introduction 

1.1 The purpose of a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) is to provide residents, 

landowners and developers with clear guidelines when planning proposals are under 

consideration within the ‘Lee West’ area. It also provides additional guidance to 

planning policies within the adopted local plan. 

 

1.2 The area this document calls ‘Lee West’ is in Lee-on-the-Solent (see Figure 1), and 

located between the Daedalus Conservation Area and the Pier Street Conservation 

Area. 

 
1.3 This SPD considers Lee West to be an ‘Area of Special Character’, which is an area 

with distinctive character or quality. The document will assist with fully understanding 

what is considered special about the area, and offer guidance as to how its character 

can be protected through the planning process. While areas of special character are 

not of sufficient architectural or historical interest to achieve Conservation Area 

status, they are recognised as areas which are suitable for additional and detailed 

character assessment to help guide future development. 

 
1.4 The importance of protecting additional Areas of Special Character, beyond the 

existing Marine Parade Area (designated in 2007), is identified in Policy LP14 (1b) of 

the Gosport Borough Local Plan (2011-2029). Policy LP10 also recognises the need 

to protect and enhance important townscape and landscape features within the 

Borough of Gosport. 

 
1.5 As set out in the Borough’s Local Development Scheme, the Council is preparing a 

new Local Plan which will cover the period to 2036. The Council has identified Policy 

LP10 and LP14 for retention and updating within the emerging Local Plan, which, if 

this proposal is supported, would include reference to the Lee West Area of Special 

Character. 

  



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

6 
 

 
Figure 1 - Proposed Lee West Area of Special Character 

  



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

7 
 

Historic development 

of Lee West 
 

2.1 The earliest map to show 

Lee-on-the-Solent with any 

clarity dates to 1610. It 

shows Manor Way running 

north from the coast, then 

diverting north-west to 

follow its existing route, 

prior to reverting to a 

northerly direction as it cut 

across what is now Solent 

Airfield, Daedalus. To the 

west of Manor Way the 

land is split into large 

fields. 

 

2.2 This layout had barely altered by the date of the first detailed plan produced in 1774 

(Figure 2). This more accurately illustrates the field boundaries with a regular grid of 

fields that in their form may be Medieval or even pre-Roman in origin. By 1774 one 

or two small cottages are shown beyond the core settlement: one of which survives 

as No. 47 Manor Way. The Ordnance Survey plan of 1886 shows little change from 

this earlier plan. 

 

2.3 The newly formed Lee-on-the-Solent grew from the Lee Farm estate, when the 

entrepreneur Sir John Robinson took on a vision to develop a resort town from Solent 

farmland. The initial plans were drawn up by John Robinson’s son Charles in the 

early 1880’s. The lack of any local development, except tracks to farms, gave 

Charles the freedom to design a new town on a grid layout. His broad streets, open 

spaces, and a wide promenade would give a fine sea frontage for prestigious 

properties. Roads were laid out by the late 1880’s with names taken from the local 

‘Lee’ and ‘Milvil’ farms, as well as from the Robinson’s Swanage connections (such 

as ‘Newton’, the family home). Additional names were taken from local royal 

connections, including Victoria and Osborne. 

 

Figure 2 - 1774 map of Lee West 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

8 
 

2.4 Building plots were a generous 

regular shape and sold in 48 

auctions from the 1880s to early 

1900s. Victoria Square was 

earmarked for a church, while plots 

back from the seafront were 

identified for commercial properties 

bounded by the residential street of 

‘Cambridge’ to the east, and 

‘Monserrat’ to the west: thus the 

shape of the town was born. The 

auction particulars required that 

plots had to be fenced off within six 

months, with fences “no less than 

four foot in height” (1.2m). There 

was also a requirement that 

properties were built on a fixed 

building line, set back behind front gardens. 

 
2.5 In 1901 the Lee Improvements Committee was formed (the forerunner of the Lee 

Residents Association) and they became important in encouraging the Parish 

Council and District Council to develop services such as sewage disposal and street 

lighting. 

 
2.6 Estate Plans, produced when individual plots were put up for auction, show how 

extensive the Robinson’s investment was. At its heart they developed the shops and 

hotel in the High Street and Pier Street area, as well as a rail link, a pier, and two 

large areas of parkland on Marine Parade. Beyond this core, extensive areas of new 

roads were laid out. The Robinson’s may also have personally developed a handful 

of notable buildings as part of their wider strategy to attract investment into the area. 

 

2.7 To the west of central Lee is Victoria Square, which was established by the 

Robinsons as a natural focal point for the new settlement. A temporary tin church 

was placed on this green until such point as the surrounding development attracted 

the need for a more permanent structure. Subsequently the requisition of a large 

area of the land west of Lee by the military changed the shape of the expanding 

town, with future development spreading north and east of Victoria Square.   

Figure 3 - 1893 Land Auction booklet 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

9 
 

 
2.8 The two southernmost roads within the new estate of streets were aligned parallel to 

the seafront (Marine Parade West and Montserrat Road); to their north they were 

aligned at roughly 45 degrees to the seafront. This new grid of roads filled the area 

between the coast and Manor Way, whilst retaining the meandering course of this 

latter ancient road. 

 
2.9 The repeated auctions indicate that sales were not immediately forthcoming and the 

First World War undoubtedly stalled the initial aspirations of the Robinsons. During 

the First World War the Lee area was identified as an excellent location for the 

development of a seaplane base, which later became known as HMS Daedalus. 

 

 

Figure 4 - 1928 aerial photograph of Lee West (Britain From Above website) 

 

2.10 The interwar years saw the greatest period of development, with some excellent 

examples in the Art Deco style (such as Eric Andrews and Cyril Bagley’s Art Deco 

houses on Milvil Road, with flat roofs and metal framed windows). Local architect 

Trevor Tatham - later a Lee Alderman - designed numerous buildings across the 

area, in which he developed a range of styles that varied with developer’s tastes. 

Almost all of the buildings continued to follow traditional hipped or pitched roof 

designs in a mixture of styles: including mock-timber framing, red-brick, pebble-dash, 

or painted renders. June 1933 saw the opening of St Faith’s Parish Church, replacing 

the temporary tin church. 

 

2.11 In Lee West, the roads are predominantly long and straight, lined with grass verges, 

and with many street trees. The buildings are nearly all set back on their plots, 

allowing a front as well as rear garden, often with a lawn, garage and outbuildings. 

These design features reflect the historical development detailed above, with more 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

10 
 

substantial residences on generous plots on Court Road, Grove Road and Newton 

Road. 

 

 

Figure 5 - Art Deco houses on Milvil Road 

 

2.12 By the late 1950s some of the 

original plot dimensions had 

altered, but the layout remained 

fixed and has subsequently 

changed little. Post-war 

development has witnessed a 

gradual in-filling of the remaining 

plots. 

 

Figure 6 - 1937 plan of Lee West 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

11 
 

 
Figure 7 - The development of Lee West showing the significant survival of the 1880s plots 

 

 

 
 

 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

12 
 

 

 

  

Figure 8 - 1976 aerial view of Lee West, looking north 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

13 
 

Policy position 

 

3.1 This Supplementary Planning Document links with policies within the Gosport 

Borough Local Plan 2011-2029 (GBLP), which was adopted in October 2015. This 

updated Local Plan contains a specific policy on Areas of Special Character, Policy 

LP14, which makes provision to identify new Areas of Special Character. In addition 

Policy LP10 seeks to protect and enhance important townscape and landscape 

features within the Borough. Extracts of these policies are reproduced below: 

 
 

Policy LP14: AREAS OF SPECIAL CHARACTER (extract) 
 

 
1. The Borough Council will aim to: 
 
a) protect the identified qualities of a designated Area of Special 

Character; and 
b) identify additional ‘Areas of Special Character’ where there is 

appropriate justification. 
 

 
 
 
Policy LP10: DESIGN (extract) 

 
 

2. Proposals will be permitted within the urban area as defined on the 
Policies Map, provided that: 

 
Development form 
a) It has a high quality appearance in terms of scale, setting, layout, 

massing, landscaping, and appearance including details and materials; 
 

Public realm and open space 
b) it provides, or is accessible to, high quality public spaces; 
c) it incorporates measures to protect and enhance biodiversity and 

landscape features; 
d) it will not significantly prejudice important townscape and landscape 

features; 
e) it will protect public views of important landscape and townscape 

features; 
 

Safe and high quality neighbourhoods 
j) it creates a safe environment where crime and disorder and fear of 

crime does not undermine quality of life or community cohesion; 
k) it does not cause harm by reason of: 

i) loss of light, privacy or outlook; 
ii) noise, light pollution, vibration, smell, or air pollution; or 
iii) other adverse impacts; 

 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

14 
 

3.2 The Council intends to retain and update Policies LP10 and LP14 in the emerging 

Local Plan. This will include making a specific policy reference to the Lee West Area 

of Special Character SPD, were it to be adopted. 

 
3.3 The Council adopted a Design Guidance SPD in 2014. While the provisions within 

the Design SPD will apply to all new proposals, there are a number of themes which 

are of particular relevance to this document, including guidance on: 

 
• Integrating proposals within the existing pattern of development (Scale (Grain 

and Massing)). 

• Using boundary treatments which are appropriate to the local area (Boundary 

Structures). 

• Ensuring car parking does not visually dominate the public realm (Key Design 

Principle 11). 

• Providing safe, accessible and convenient waste and cycle storage spaces in 

new developments (Key Design Principle 12). 

• Using scale, form, design and materials to respond positively to the defining 

characteristics of an area (Key Design Principle 13). 

 
3.4 Appendix A of the Design SPD (2014) lays out a ‘Key Design Principles Checklist’1 

with accompanying questions which form a useful set of key design guidelines that 

inform appropriate development. The Lee West SPD is designed to highlight key 

characteristics which are specifically relevant to the area. These characteristics will 

need to be considered in addition to the basic principles set out in the Design SPD 

(2014).  

                                                           
1 https://www.gosport.gov.uk/sections/your-council/council-services/planning-section/local-development-
framework/supplementary-planning-documents/design  



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

15 
 

Key characteristics and design guidance 
 

Overview 
4.1 The key characteristics within the area of Lee West, largely set by the Robinsons, 

were intended to ensure: 

 

• Detached / semi-detached properties (larger in scale towards the north and east 

of the area). 

• A clear rhythm in the separation distances between the many buildings along the 

roads. 

• Massing: universally below 3 storeys (there is only one fully 3 storey building in 

Area 1 of recent date). 

• Bordered front and back gardens with boundary walls, fences or hedges. 

• A predominance of wide streets with grass verges and trees. 

• Buildings largely set back a uniform distance from the footpath. 

 

4.2 In addition the following design principles have become established: 

 

• Roof styles are universally hipped, gabled or pitched above eaves height (with 

the exception of the handful of distinct Art Deco buildings). 

• Plot arrangement with limited loss of front gardens to hard surfacing, successfully 

incorporating parking, lawns or shrubs. 

 

4.3 Street trees play an important role in enhancing the character of the area in addition 

to their ecological value. The Borough Council aims to work with Hampshire County 

Council, which is responsible for street trees, to encourage their retention and 

replacement. Wherever possible, additional and appropriate street trees will be 

encouraged. 

 

4.4 There are a number of existing Tree Preservation Orders in the area (see Figure 9), 

and where other trees are of a suitable quality, these will be considered for inclusion 

within future Tree Preservation Orders. 

 
4.5 Two areas are defined as protected open space with Lee West: the setting of St 

Faiths Church, which includes many trees with Tree Preservation Orders, and the 

green space formed by the Tennis Club. Both of these areas are protected by Local 

Plan Policies LP35 and LP41. 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

16 
 

 
4.6 Figures 9-11 are a series of plans showing key characteristics in Lee West. Figure 9 

shows the storey heights in Lee West, which range from 1 storey bungalows to 3 

storeys townhouses (0.5 of a storey is where accommodation is built within the 

hipped, pitched or gables roof space, usually with the incorporation of dormer 

windows or roof lights). Figure 10 highlights the substantial levels of green 

infrastructure in the area, composed of grass verges, trees and hedges, as well as 

areas of open space. Figure 11 shows the predominant building line within Lee West, 

including areas where frontages could be re-established to reinforce the character of 

the area. 

 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

17 
 

 
Figure 9 - Storey heights in Lee West 

 

 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

18 
 

 
Figure 10 - Green infrastructure in Lee West 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

19 
 

 

 
Figure 11 - Plan showing building lines and green spaces 

 

4.7 In light of more recent development in the Lee West area, it is considered appropriate 

to provide further design guidance to protect and enhance the key characteristics and 

design principles which are integral to the special character of Lee West. To assist 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

20 
 

with highlighting their characteristics, Lee West area has been divided into four 

smaller areas, which have their own distinct character. These are explained in more 

detail in the following section. 

 

 
Figure 12 - The four smaller areas of distinct character 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

21 
 

Area 1: Manor Way to Court 
Road / Milvil Road 

 
5.1 The course of Manor Way reflects 

the meandering medieval route that 

led from Lee, northwards. Typical 

of well-established ancient routes it 

is characterised by high hedges, a 

higher density of trees, and loosely 

defined grass verges. A more 

varied built form represents several 

phases of development: many of 

which are screened by hedgerows 

and partially nestling in the natural 

landscape. Manor Way is the only 

road in the area that is not straight, 

and neatly defines the north-

eastern boundary to the area of 

special character. 
 

5.2 When the vicinity of Manor Way 

began to be developed in the later Victorian period it soon diverted from typical plot 

widths to a few larger plots with large volume properties. This character subsequently 

set the scene for the area to the east of Milvil Road and north of Court Road where 

larger plots and a lower density of development predominate and follow a more 

irregular building layout: albeit with frontages largely set well back from property 

boundaries (noticeably so along Newton Place and the north side of Court Road). 
 

5.3 Trees, hedgerows and larger gardens play a significant part in the character of the 

area, as does the wider spacing of many of the properties. Where hedgerows do not 

define boundaries higher walls or fences are common. The grass verges and street 

trees add to the character of the area. 
 

5.4 New development should avoid sub-dividing plots to create too high a density, and 

be mindful of the harmful impact multi-occupancy can risk through the knock on 

effect of parking, hard landscaping, loss of green space or defined frontage 

boundaries. 
 

Figure 13 - Area 1 of Lee West 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

22 
 

5.5 Locally Listed dwellings (No.71 Manor Way, 42 and 47 Milvil Road, and No.1 Court 

Road) play an important part in reflecting the historic interest of the area and its 

origins in the late 19th Century. Where planning permission is required for works 

affecting these properties, the policy position stresses the importance of protecting 

their individual character and setting. 

 

5.6 All buildings have hipped, pitched or gables roofs and only one is fully three storeys 

in height (i.e. with a full third floor above eaves line, not a floor level partly built into 

the roof pitches). There is a variety of external elevation treatments, with good 

examples of well-considered red facing brickwork, clay tile roofs, mock-timber 

framing, and the use of render. 

 
 
Key characteristics 

• Heavier tree/hedge cover. 

• Medieval Lane. 

• Looser definition to frontages (except in parts of Milvil Road). 

• Larger plots. 

• Larger houses at low density.  

• Properties are almost all 1 to 2.5 storey, with only one fully 3 storeys. 

• Regular sized plots largely from 1886 sales (some merged to create even larger 

plots), but with more irregularity on Manor Way. 

• Hipped, pitched or gabled roofs. 

• Locally Listed landmark houses (part of original phase). 

• Grass verges with street trees (except Manor Way). 

• Boundary treatment: mix of walls and fences (often around 1.5-1.8 m in height) as 

well and hedges. 

• Front gardens. 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

23 
 

 

Figure 14 - Manor Way, looking east 

 
 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

24 
 

 

Figure 15 - Newton Place, showing boundary walls, verges and mature trees 

 
 
Enhancement opportunities 

• Encourage soft landscaping and street trees. 

• More Tree Preservation Orders could be considered. 

• Avoid the loss of front gardens to car parking. Where hard landscaping for parking is 

considered appropriate, it should remain a modest percentage of each front garden 

space: this being especially important in this area with its larger gardens. 

• New development to follow the established spacing, rhythm and scale.  

 

 

 

 

 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

25 
 

Area 2: Milvil Road to Daedalus 
Conservation Area 

5.7 The layout of this area was mostly fixed by the 

1880s, with modest change by the 1930s: 

thereafter its plan form has remained largely 

static. The plots and spacing of the properties 

are regular (those on the west side of Milvil 

Road being more compressed). Other positive 

characteristics include the retention of many 

front boundary walls and fences (on average 

lower than in Area 1, and most are around 0.5 m 

in height). 

 

5.8 All properties are between 1 and 2.5 storeys in height and, with the exception of the 

unique group of Art Deco buildings on Milvil Road, all have hipped, pitched or gabled 

roofs. Properties are nearly all developed to a uniform set-back depth from their front 

boundaries, with the main built mass of each property developed within the front half 

of the plots. 

 

5.9 The area benefits from a number of mature gardens, grass verges, and some 

prominent trees. Enhanced soft landscaping will be encouraged through the planning 

process. The loss of boundary walls, fences, hedgerows and front gardens would 

erode the special character of the area. 

 
5.10 The Art Deco properties are on the Local List of building of historic or architectural 

importance and make a distinct and positive contribution to the character of the area 

and are a well-known local landmark. Where planning permission is required there 

will be a presumption in favour or retaining and reinforcing this distinct character. 

Figure 16 - Area 2 of Lee West 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

26 
 

 

Figure 17 - Art Deco properties on Milvil Road 

 

Key characteristics 
 

• Medium density. 

• Plots largely of 1886, with some fixed by 1930s. 

• Regular pattern of plots and regular spacing of properties. 

• Properties set back on a consistent depth from the footpath. 

• Properties largely developed within the front half of plots with regular sized front 

gardens. 

• Mature gardens some notable trees. 

• Verges and street trees. 

• Boundary walls and fences, most around 0.5m in height. 

• Some Locally Listed Art Deco properties on Milvil Road with flat roofs. 

• All other properties hipped, pitched or gabled roofs. 

• All properties 1 to 2.5 storey, domestic scale, with some moderately larger buildings 

on some corners. 

 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

27 
 

 

Figure 18 - Prominent corner property on King's Road 

 
 
Enhancement opportunities 

• Encourage retention of front boundary walls and fences, at an appropriate height. 

• Avoid the loss of front gardens to car parking. 

• Encourage soft landscaping and street trees. 

• Consider Tree Preservation Order, where relevant. 

• Reinforce rhythm and alignment of predominant building plots. 

• Ensure all new buildings fit within the established scale. 
 
 

 

   



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

28 
 

Area 3: Victoria Square to Swanage 
Road 

5.11 The heart of the development to the west 

side of Lee town centre was Victoria 

Square: laid out by the Robinsons in the 

1880s to create a community focus. The 

plots around the square and across this 

area are largely regular in size following the 

pattern established in the 1880s (excepting 

the opening out of some plots to create the 

group of single story bungalows towards the 

corner of Milvil Road and Court Road). 

Properties are once again nearly all set 

back from established boundaries with walls, hedges or fences, and except in part of 

Victoria Square and on Grove Road, grass verges dominate the streetscape. 

 

5.12 All buildings are between 1 and 2.5 storeys in height with the single landmark 

building being St Faiths Church (Listed Grade II). The setting of the church, with its 

many trees and green open space, is without doubt one of the most important 

attributes of the area and every opportunity to protect or enhance this setting is key 

to preserving the role and function of this historic space within the wider 

development. 

 
5.13 There are a notable group of buildings along the south side of Victoria Square, and 

southern part of Milvil Road, which integrate mock-timber framing within part of each 

building. Once again, buildings largely follow a consistent rhythm in spacing (with the 

exception of the east side of Milvil Road, from Britten Road to Court Road, where 

future development could consider re-establishing the wider, more established 

pattern of development). 

 
5.14 Trees and soft landscaping play an important role across this area and the ‘wall to 

wall’ hard landscaping of front gardens and the loss of clearly defined boundaries 

marked by walls, fences or hedges, could, in time, significantly harm the special 

character of the area.  

 
 
 
 

Figure 19 - Area 3 of Lee West 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

29 
 

Key characteristics 
 

• Medium density. 

• Regular plots largely of 1880s origin, with some established by 1930s. 

• Notable open spaces (Victoria Square and the tennis courts). 

• Prominent groups of trees in Victoria Square and south of tennis courts. 

• Mature gardens with a mix of established shrubs. 

• Established boundaries marked by hedges, fences or walls: generally lower to 

frontages. 

• Verges with street trees, except on part of Victoria Square and Grove Road. 

• Overall a regular depth to frontages, and properties largely developed on the front 

half of plots with regular sized front gardens. 

• Landmark building Grade II Listed, St Faith’s Church, and surrounding open space. 

• Roof forms universally hipped, pitched, or gabled above eaves. 

• Notable group of mock-timber detailing to properties on the southern side of Victoria 

Square and southern part of Milvil Road. 

• All properties built to a domestic scale between 1 and 2.5 storeys in height 

 

 

 

Figure 20 - View down Milvil Road with St Faith’s Church and Victoria Square to the left 

 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

30 
 

 

Figure 21 - View of Swanage Road, showing building form and boundary walls 

 
 

Enhancement opportunities 

• Retain front boundaries and gardens. 

• Avoid the entire loss of front gardens to car parking. 

• Encourage soft landscaping and street trees. 

• Consider further Tree Preservation Orders, where relevant. 

• Reinforce building alignments and rhythm of historic development plots. 

 
 

 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

31 
 

Area 4: Montserrat Road and Osborne 
Road 

5.15 Monserrat Road has a tightly defined 

character of buildings built within the 

1880s building plots: with only one plot 

added by the 1930s. This creates a very 

balanced and well defined character in 

the rhythm of the layout; spacing between 

properties; uniform layout of plots (with a 

high level of consistency in how far the 

buildings are set back from their 

frontages); and with the mass of each 

property located on the front half of each 

site (excepting the triangular shaped 

corner plots). 

 

5.16 No building is above 2.5 storeys in height, and hipped, pitched or gables roofs are 

universally evident. With a number of properties developed before 1937 there is a 

distinct pre-war character to the built form, with steep roofs being common. 

 
5.17 The area retains many front gardens and boundaries with walls, hedges or fences. 

Monserrat Road marks the distinct change from the Marine Parade Area of Special 

Character (which has larger volume buildings), and has a very strongly defined 

traditional residential character which naturally leading towards the key focal point of 

Victoria Square. 

 
5.18 The area would benefit from more trees and soft landscaping, and future applications 

should carefully consider the importance of integrating soft landscaping to help retain 

and reinforce the characteristics of the Area of Special Character. 

 
  

Figure 22 - Area 4 of Lee West 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

32 
 

Key characteristics 

• All but one plot boundary established by 1886. 

• Regular sized plots. 

• Regular form of buildings. 

• All roofs hipped, gabled or pitched above eaves. 

• Nearly all properties set back to a uniform depth. 

• Most plots defined by front garden walls or fences (often between 0.5m and 1m in 

height). 

• All properties built to a domestic scale between 1 and 2.5 storeys in height. 

• The main mass of each property is developed on the front half of plots (except the 

triangular corner plots), each with largely uniform gardens. 
 

 

 

Figure 23 - View north-west down Montserrat Road 



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

33 
 

 
Figure 24 - Building form and boundaries in Montserrat Road 

 

Enhancement opportunities 

• Avoid the entire loss of front gardens to car parking. 

• Encourage soft landscaping and trees. 

• Re-establish missing front boundary walls or fences, between 0.5m and 1m in 

height as appropriate. 

• Ensure future development follows the pattern of the existing established built 

form in scale, mass, and rhythm. 

 

 

  



Lee West Area of Special Character SPD                                                                                                                     March 2019 
 
 

34 
 

Conclusion 
 
6.1 This SPD is designed to help recognise and reinforce the distinct character of Lee 

West. Development proposals that help to retain and enhance this special character, 

subject to all other planning requirements, are likely to be supported through the 

planning process. 
 

6.2 Prior to embarking on an extension, alteration, or new build it is always important to 

check whether planning permission is required for the works being considered. The 

General Permitted Development Order does allow for a degree of development 

without the need for permission. Where this presents risks to the Area of Special 

Character future controls may be considered necessary to limit harm. However, all 

applications will need to consider the SPD, and will be judged on how they positively 

contribute to the existing character of the area, whether they have no noticeable 

impact, or whether they are considered harmful. Planning applications will also need 

to have regard to the provisions within the Council’s Design SPD, which is discussed 

in paragraphs 3.3 and 3.4 of this document. 

  





Gosport Borough Council
Town Hall, High Street,
Gosport,
Hampshire,
PO12 1EB

Tel: (023) 9258 4242

www.gosport.gov.uk

Gosport Borough Council is committed to equal opportunities for all.

If you need this document in large print, on tape, CD,
in Braille or in another language, please ask.

Published: March 2019

GOSPORT
Borough Council

27912 Marine Parade Back Cover copy.pdf   1   17/01/2019   10:02



Board/Committee: Economic and Development Board
Date of Meeting: 13 March 2019
Title: Lift of Restrictive Covenant placed upon land 

adjacent to 104 Long Drive, Gosport
Author: Head of Housing
Status: FOR APPROVAL

Purpose

To inform the Board of the details of a restrictive covenant placed upon the 
land adjacent to 104 Long Drive, Gosport  in favour of the Council  (the 
“Land”) and to seek approval for its release subject to agreeing financial 
compensation from the owner.

Recommendation

That the Board approves the release of the restrictive  covenant placed upon 
the Land restricting the use of any building  as accommodation for disabled 
persons and authorises the Head of Housing to determine and agree a 
financial compensation payment from the owner of 104 Long Drive.

1 Background

1.1 No 104 Long Drive was a former Council property sold under the 
Right to Buy Scheme in 1983.  In 1986 the owners of the property 
approached the Council to purchase adjacent land in order to erect 
an extension, to accommodate a family member with disabilities (See 
Plan)

1.2 The Council agreed to the sale of the adjacent land but only upon 
condition that the future extension was used as disabled person’s 
accommodation.  This ‘restriction’ on use is the restrictive covenant 
placed upon the title of the land, the actual wording of the restrictive 
covenant being “The Purchasers hereby for themselves and their 
successors in title jointly and severally covenant with the Vendor that 
any building or accommodation erected or to be erected or placed on 
the land hereby conveyed shall not be used otherwise than as 
disabled persons accommodation”( the Restrictive Covenant”)

1.3 At the time of sale the open market value of the land was assessed 
at £2,250 and the Council sold the land to the owners of 104 Long 
Drive for £750, therefore at an under-value of £1,500 to reflect the 
reduced value caused by the Restrictive Covenant.  Officers do not 
have records to explain the reason this approach was taken although 
it is assumed that it was in order to reduce the cost of the extension 
for the disabled resident.

Agenda Item 8



1.4 The current owner of No 104 Long Drive is now selling the property 
and has asked the Council to lift the Restrictive Covenant in order to 
improve the marketability of the property.

2 Report

2.1 The Council is the beneficiary of the Restrictive Covenant and may 
lift it at its own discretion.  The Council is not obligated to do so. 
However, the Council gains nothing from retaining such a Restrictive 
Covenant.  

2.2 The Council did, in 1986, release the land for less than market value 
and is entitled to recover the under-value of £1,500 at today’s 
monetary value.  

2.3 Today’s value would be almost deminimis, however the disabled 
person using the extension passed away in 1996 and in effect 
thereafter the extension was not used for its original purpose.  The 
Council is within its rights to take this into consideration when 
assessing the current monetary value of the original £1,500 under-
value.

2.4 Should the Board approve the lifting of the covenant Officers will, 
utilising valuation best practice, determine an appropriate value and 
agree terms with the owner to release the Restrictive Covenant.

3 Risk Assessment

3.1 There is no risk to the Council should the Board recommend the 
lifting of this Restrictive Covenant.   

4 Conclusion

4.1 It is considered that the Council gains nothing from the retention of 
this Restrictive Covenant placed in 1986.

4.2 The Head of Housing will negotiate a reasonable compensation 
payment from the owner of 104 Long Drive

Financial Services comments: Any payment negotiated for the release of 
the restrictive covenant will be credited to 
the Housing Revenue Account.

Legal Services comments: Contained in the report
Crime and Disorder: N/A
Equality and Diversity: N/A
EIA: N/A
Service Improvement Plan 
implications:

N/A

Corporate Plan: N/A



Risk Assessment: Included at Section 3
Background papers: None
Appendices/Enclosures:

Appendix ‘A’ Plan
Report author/ Lead Officer: Dean Pickett x 5750



Appendix A

Plan - Land Adjacent to 104 Long Drive


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the previous meeting of the Economic Development Board held 30 January 2019
	Minutes

	6 Statement of Community Involvement
	Appendix 1 - Summary and Analysis of Consultation Responses (March 2019).._
	Appendix 2 - Schedule of proposed changes (March 2019) (2)
	Appendix 3- SCI document (March 2019) 050319

	7 Draft Lee West Area of Special Character, Supplementary Planning Document
	Lee West Area of Special Character SPD
	Lee West Area of Special Character SPD (draft) v17 a.pdf
	Local Development Framework
	Lee West Area of Special Character Supplementary Planning Document
	March 2019
	Historic development of Lee West


	Blank Page
	Blank Page


	8 Lift of Restrictive Covenant placed upon land adjacent to 104 Long Drive, Gosport



